
 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE RENT BOARD OF THE CITY OF RICHMOND 
 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, COMMUNITY SERVICES BUILDING 
440 Civic Center Plaza, Richmond, CA 94804 

 
Wednesday, July 17, 2019 

 
 

Boardmembers 
Alana Grice Conner 

Virginia Finlay 
Emma Gerould 

Commieolla Duncan 
Lauren Maddock 

 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION 
 

This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request disability-
related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact Bruce Soublet, ADA Coordinator, at (510) 620-6509 at least 
three business days before the meeting date. 

 
NOTICE TO PUBLIC 

 
The City of Richmond encourages community participation at public meetings and has 
established procedures that are intended to accommodate public input in a timely and 
time-sensitive way. As a courtesy to all members of the public who wish to participate in 
Rent Board meetings, please observe the following procedures: 
 
Public Comment on Agenda Items: Persons wishing to speak on a particular item on the 
agenda shall file a speaker form with City staff PRIOR to the Rent Board’s consideration 
of the item on the agenda. Once the clerk announces the item, only those persons who 

Link to Rent Board Meeting Agendas and Accompanying Materials: 
www.ci.richmond.ca.us/3375/Rent-Board  

http://www.ci.richmond.ca.us/3375/Rent-Board


Wednesday, July 17, 2019 

2 
 

have previously submitted speaker forms shall be permitted to speak on the item. Each 
speaker will be allowed up to two minutes to address the Rent Board. 
 
Public Forum: Individuals who would like to address the Rent Board on matters not 
listed on the agenda or on items remaining on the consent calendar may do so under 
Public Forum. All speakers must complete and file a speaker’s card with City staff prior 
to the commencement of Public Forum. The amount of time allotted to individual 
speakers shall be determined based on the number of persons requesting to speak 
during this item. The time allocation for each speaker will be as follows: 15 or fewer 
speakers, a maximum of 2 minutes; 16 to 24 speakers, a maximum of 1 and one-half 
minutes; and 25 or more speakers, a maximum of 1 minute. 
 
Conduct at Meetings: Richmond Rent Board meetings are limited public forums during 
which the City strives to provide an open, safe atmosphere and promote robust public 
debate. Members of the public, however, must comply with state law, as well as the 
City’s laws and procedures and may not actually disrupt the orderly conduct of these 
meetings. The public, for example, may not shout or use amplifying devices, must 
submit comment cards and speak during their allotted time in order to provide public 
comment, may not create a physical disturbance, may not speak on matters unrelated 
to issues within the jurisdiction of the Rent Board or the agenda item at hand, and may 
not cause immediate threats to public safety. 
 
City Harassment Policy: The City invites public comment and critique about its 
operations, including comment about the performance of its public officials and 
employees, at the public meetings of the City Council and boards and commissions. 
However, discriminatory or harassing comments about or in the presence of City 
employees, even comments by third parties, may create a hostile work environment, if 
severe or pervasive. The City prohibits harassment against an applicant, employee, or 
contractor on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical 
disability, medical condition, mental disability, marital status, sex (including pregnancy, 
childbirth, and related medical conditions), sexual orientation, gender identity, age or 
veteran status, or any other characteristic protected by federal, state or local law. In 
order to acknowledge the public’s right to comment on City operations at public 
meetings, which could include comments that violate the City’s harassment policy if 
such comments do not cause an actual disruption under the Council Rules and 
Procedures, while taking reasonable steps to protect City employees from 
discrimination and harassment, City Boards and Commissions shall adhere to the 
following procedures. If any person makes a harassing remark at a public meeting that 
violates the above City policy prohibiting harassment, the presiding officer of the 
meeting may, at the conclusion of the speaker’s remarks and allotted time: (a) remind 
the public that the City’s Policy Regarding Harassment of its Employees is contained in 
the written posted agenda; and (b) state that comments in violation of City policy are not 
condoned by the City and will play no role in City decisions. If any person makes a 
harassing remark at a public meeting that violates the above City policy, any City 
employee in the room who is offended by remarks violating the City’s policy is excused 
from attendance at the meeting. No City employee is compelled to remain in attendance 



Wednesday, July 17, 2019 

3 
 

where it appears likely that speakers will make further harassing comments. If an 
employee leaves a City meeting for this reason, the presiding officer may send a 
designee to notify any offended employee who has left the meeting when those 
comments are likely concluded so that the employee may return to the meeting. The 
presiding officer may remind an employee or any council or board or commission 
member that he or she may leave the meeting if a remark violating the City’s 
harassment policy is made. 
 
  



This page intentionally left blank 



Wednesday, July 17, 2019 

4 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE RICHMOND RENT BOARD 
 

AGENDA 
 

5:00 PM 
 
 

A. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG 
 

B. ROLL CALL 
 

C. STATEMENT OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 

D. AGENDA REVIEW 
 

E. SWEARING IN OF NEW BOARDMEMBERS 
 

F. ELECT CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR 
 

G. PUBLIC FORUM 
 

H. RENT BOARD CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

H-1. APPROVE the minutes of the June 19, 2019, 
Regular Meeting of the Richmond Rent Board. 
 

Cynthia Shaw 

H-2. RECEIVE the June 2019 Rent Program Monthly 
Report.  

Paige Roosa 

H-3. RECEIVE the Rent Program FY 2018-19 Monthly 
Revenue and Expenditure Report through June 
2019.  

Paige Roosa 

 
I. RENT BOARD AS A WHOLE 

 
I-1. RECEIVE training in the requirements of the 

Ralph M. Brown Act and the requirements of the 
Rosenberg Rules of Order. 

Charles Oshinuga 

 
J. REGULATIONS 

 
J-1. AMEND Regulation 842 to do either of the 

following: Option A:  Within 15 business days after 
the date to file an appeal has expired, allow the 
Executive Director or assigned Designee to treat 

Charles Oshinuga 
 



Wednesday, July 17, 2019 

5 
 

appeals as requests for reconsideration, where 
there is a clear misapplication of the law, the law 
has changed, there is a problem with the Record, 
or any other matter where reconsideration would 
be appropriate considering administrative efficacy. 
This amendment would also clarify that the 
Executive Director or assigned Designee is the 
individual who grants a request for 
reconsideration and not the Hearing Examiner. 
 
Option B: Amend Regulation 842 to allow the 
Executive Director or assigned Designee to send 
a matter back to the Hearing Examiner within a 
reasonable period of time without the requirement 
of a Rent Board Order, where the issue involves a 
clear misapplication of the law, a problem with the 
Record, or a change in the law or any other matter 
appropriate for reconsideration. In such an event, 
the Executive Director or assigned Designee must 
submit a written Order of Reconsideration with 
specific instructions identifying the good cause 
underlying the granting of reconsideration and the 
parameters of the hearing on reconsideration. 
  

J-2. RECEIVE a presentation on possible Rent Board 
governance regulations and PROVIDE direction to 
staff. 

Paige Roosa 
 

 
K. REPORTS OF OFFICERS 

 
L. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the Rent 

Board regarding any item on this agenda will be made available at the Rent 
Program Office located on the second floor of 440 Civic Center Plaza and will be 

posted at www.richmondrent.org.  

http://www.richmondrent.org/


AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM  
Department: Rent Program Department Head: Nicolas Traylor         Phone: 620-6564 
   
Meeting Date:  July 17, 2019 Final Decision Date Deadline:  July 17, 2019 

 
STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE: The minutes of the June 19, 2019, Regular Meeting of the Richmond Rent Board require 
approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             
INDICATE APPROPRIATE BODY  

 City Council  Redevelopment 
Agency 

 Housing Authority  Surplus Property 
Authority 

 Joint Powers 
Financing Authority 

 Finance 
Standing 
Committee 

 Public Safety Public 
Services Standing 
Committee 

 Local Reuse Authority Other: Rent Board 

    
 

  

ITEM   

 Presentation/Proclamation/Commendation (3-Minute Time Limit) 

 Public Hearing    Regulation    Other: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 Contract/Agreement   Rent Board As Whole 
 Grant Application/Acceptance  Claims Filed Against City of Richmond     

 Resolution     Video/PowerPoint Presentation (contact KCRT @ 620.6759) 

  

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 

                            H-1. 
 
 
rev 2/06  P:\City_Managers\Agenda Rqst  Formrev.doc 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: APPROVE the minutes of the June 19, 2019 Regular Meeting of the Richmond Rent Board – 
Rent Program (Cynthia Shaw 620-5552). 
 



This page intentionally left blank 



ITEM H-1 
ATTACHMENT 1 

 

Rb19June2019 
Page 1 of 6 

 

RICHMOND, CALIFORNIA, June 19, 2019 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Richmond Rent Board was 
called to order at 5:12 P.M. 
 

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Boardmembers Finlay, Maddock, and Vice Chair 
Gerould.  
Absent: None. 
 

STATEMENT OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
  

None. 
 

AGENDA REVIEW  
 
 On motion of Boardmember Finlay, seconded by Vice 
Chair Gerould, a request to move Item F-3 from the Consent 
Calendar for discussion before Item G-1 under Regulations, passed 
by the following vote: Ayes: Boardmembers, Finlay, Maddock and 
Vice Chair Gerould.  Noes: None. Abstentions: None. Absent: 
None.  
 
PUBLIC FORUM 
 
 Cordell Hindler mentioned that he spoke with the North 
and East Neighborhood Council and they agreed to have Executive 
Director Nicolas Traylor provide a presentation on Rent Control at 
their meeting during the week of June 24th. He also invited the 
Rent Board to attend community events that will be held in the 
months of July and September. He also mentioned that he 
discussed the possibility of Executive Director Nicolas Traylor 
presenting on Rent Control at their meeting in the fall with his 
Neighborhood Council. He is still working on the logistics and will 
provide more information at a later date. 
 
RENT BOARD CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

On motion of Vice Chair Gerould, seconded by 
Boardmember Finlay, the item(s) marked with an (*) were 
approved. 

 



                                                                     ITEM H-1 
                                                              ATTACHMENT 1 

Rb19June2019 
Page 2 of 6 

 

*F-1. Approve the minutes of the May 15, 2019, Regular 
Meeting of the Richmond Rent Board. 

 
*F-2. Approve the minutes of the May 30, 2019, Special 

Meeting of the Richmond Rent Board. 
 

 *F-4. Receive the May 2019 Rent Program Monthly 
Report. 
 
 *F-5. Receive the Rent Program FY 2018-19 Monthly 
Revenue and Expenditure Report through May 2019. 
 
 *F-6. Approve an amendment to the contract for translation 
services with Document Tracking Services increasing the amount 
by $15,000, to a total not to exceed $34,999, and extending the 
term to June 30, 2020. 
 
 *F-7. Approve an amendment to the contract for 
community legal services with the Eviction Defense Center 
modifying the Service Plan to specify that the Eviction Defense 
Center will serve at least 30 Richmond Tenants per month, 
increasing the contact amount by $125,000 for Fiscal Year 2019-
20, to a total not to exceed $237,500, and extending the term to 
June 30, 2020. 
 
 *F-8. Approve amendments to the contract for community 
legal services with Bay Area Legal Aid (1) modifying the Service 
Plan with respect to the number of participants assisted at legal 
clinics, provided legal representation, and referred to peer legal 
services agencies; (2) increasing the contact amount by $75,000 for 
Fiscal Year 2019-20, to a total not to exceed $100,000; and (3) 
extending the term to June 30, 2020. 
 
REGULATIONS 
 
 *F-3. The matter to receive letters from community 
members regarding the Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction, and 
Homeowner Protection Ordinance, RMC 11.100 was moved from 
the Consent Calendar for discussion before Item G-1 under 
Regulations.  Boardmember Finlay requested to remove this item 
from the Consent Calendar because a vendor submitted a letter to 
the Board asking for clarification regarding a Landlord installing a 
solar system on their property to stabilize electric costs for their 
tenants. Boardmember Finlay directed staff to continue to review 
the letter and to conduct research on the solar system issue and 
prepare a report to present to the Board for discussion of a possible 



                                                                     ITEM H-1 
                                                              ATTACHMENT 1 

Rb19June2019 
Page 3 of 6 

 

Regulation in future.   
 
 G-1. The matter to amend Chapter 8 of the Rent Board 
Regulations to: (1) amend Regulation 835 to create parameters 
guiding both how the Record is to remain open and when the 
Record must be closed; (2) add Regulation 841.5 to articulate the 
Standard of Review on appeal; and (3) amend Regulation 842 to 
allow the Executive Director or assigned designee to treat appeals 
as requests for reconsideration where there is a clear 
misapplication of the law, the law has changed, there is a problem 
with the Record, or any other matter where reconsideration would 
be appropriate considering administrative efficacy (this 
amendment would also clarify that the Executive Director or 
assigned designee is the individual who grants a request for 
reconsideration and not the Hearing Examiner) was presented by 
Staff Attorney, Charles Oshinuga.  The presentation included the 
statement of the issue, record background, a proposal by staff 
addressing parameters of the record, background that included 
standard of review on appeal, a proposal by staff addressing the 
standard of review, background that included treating an appeal as 
a request for reconsideration, a proposal by staff addressing 
treatment of appeals as a request for reconsideration and the 
recommended action. Discussion ensued. There were no public 
comments on this item. A motion by Boardmember Maddock, 
seconded by Vice Chair Gerould, to (1) approve the amendment to 
Regulation 835 to create parameters guiding both how the Record 
is to remain open and when the Record must be closed; (2) add 
Regulation 841.5 to articulate the Standard of Review on appeal; 
and (3) direct staff to amend Regulation 842 to reflect that the 
order be issued within 15 days after the 35 day appeal period has 
expired passed by the following vote: Ayes: Boardmembers, 
Finlay, Maddock and Vice Chair Gerould.  Noes: None. 
Abstentions: None. Absent: None. 
 
 G-2. The matter to adopt Regulation 607, establishing the 
2019 Annual General Adjustment in the amount of 3.5% for 
tenancies commencing prior to September 1, 2018, was presented 
by Staff Attorney, Charles Oshinuga. The presentation included the 
statement of the issue, background information on the Annual 
General Adjustment (AGA), staff’s proposal regarding the 2019 
AGA, and the recommended action. Discussion ensued.  There 
were no public comments on this item. A motion by Vice Chair 
Gerould, seconded by Boardmember Maddock, to approve 
Regulation 607, establishing the 2019 Annual General Adjustment 
in the amount of 3.5% for tenancies commencing prior to 
September 1, 2018, passed by the following vote: Ayes: 



                                                                     ITEM H-1 
                                                              ATTACHMENT 1 

Rb19June2019 
Page 4 of 6 

 

Boardmembers, Finlay, Maddock and Vice Chair Gerould.  Noes: 
None. Abstentions: None. Absent: None. 
 
 G-3. The matter to adopt an amendment to Regulation 805 
A (4), Petition and Noticing Procedures, to extend the staff review 
period from five to ten business days was presented by Deputy 
Director, Paige Roosa.  The presentation included the statement of 
the issue, background of the current process that included an 
excerpt of the current process flow chart, the proposed amendment 
and the recommended action. Discussion ensued.  There were no 
public comments on this item. A motion by Boardmember Finlay, 
seconded by Vice Chair Gerould, to amend Regulation 805 A (4), 
Petition and Noticing Procedures, to extend the staff review period 
from five to ten business days, passed by the following vote: Ayes: 
Boardmembers, Finlay, Maddock and Vice Chair Gerould.  Noes: 
None. Abstentions: None. Absent: None. 
 
 G-4. The matter to rescind Regulation 605(C), and allow 
for the Rent Program to establish policies to enhance Landlords’ 
ability to bring themselves into compliance with the Rent 
Ordinance’s prohibition on retention of rents in excess of the 
Maximum Allowable Rent, was presented by Executive Director, 
Nicolas Traylor.  The presentation included the statement of the 
issue, background and discussion, the proposed rescission of 
Regulation 605 (C), and the recommended action. Discussion 
ensued. There were no public comments on this item. A motion by 
Boardmember Finlay, seconded by Boardmember Maddock to 
rescind Regulation 605(C), and allow for the Rent Program to 
establish policies to enhance Landlords’ ability to bring themselves 
into compliance with the Rent Ordinance’s prohibition on retention 
of rents in excess of the Maximum Allowable Rent and direct staff 
to draft a policy to include alternative payment methods to allow 
secure electronic payment systems to assist Landlords in returning 
any excess rent amounts to the Tenant and return the policy to the 
Board for approval, passed by the following vote: Ayes: 
Boardmembers, Finlay, Maddock and Vice Chair Gerould.  Noes: 
None. Abstentions: None. Absent: None. 
 
RENT BOARD AS A WHOLE 
 
 H-1. The matter to direct staff to negotiate and execute a 
contract with a Collection Services Agency, utilizing a 
contingency-based payment plan, was presented by Deputy 
Director, Paige Roosa.  The presentation included  background 
information including a chart of Richmond Landlords by numbers 
of units owned and Landlords who have not paid any Rental 



                                                                     ITEM H-1 
                                                              ATTACHMENT 1 

Rb19June2019 
Page 5 of 6 

 

Housing Fees for FYs 2016-17, 2017-18 and 2018-19, a chart of 
Rental Housing Fee Payments (by number of Landlords) and 
Rental Housing Fee Payments (by amount of $), information about 
why utilizing services from a collection agency is recommended, 
the proposed scope of services, a proposed timeline, and the 
recommended action. Discussion ensued. There were no public 
comments on this item. A motion by Vice Chair Gerould, seconded 
by Boardmember Finlay, to direct staff to negotiate and execute a 
contract with a Collection Services Agency, utilizing a 
contingency-based payment plan, and to take into consideration 
best business practices concerning collection agency practices, 
credit reporting process, and prohibiting selling owner contact 
information to 3rd parties passed by the following vote: Ayes: 
Boardmembers, Finlay, Maddock and Vice Chair Gerould.  Noes: 
None. Abstentions: None. Absent: None. 
 
 H-2. The matter to approve the proposed staff evaluation 
plan for the Rent Program and direct staff to begin implementing 
the evaluation plan beginning in Fiscal Year 2019-20, was 
presented by Executive Director, Nicolas Traylor.  The 
presentation included the statement of the issue, a general plan, 
staff evaluations templates to model the City’s, information about 
the proposed 360-degree evaluation of the Executive Director, 
information about who would evaluate the Executive Director and 
how this evaluation would be tied to any proposed salary 
adjustment, and the recommended action. Discussion ensued.  
There were no public comments on this item. A motion by Vice 
Chair Gerould, seconded by Boardmember Maddock, to approve 
the proposed staff evaluation plan for the Rent Program and direct 
staff to begin implementing the evaluation plan beginning in Fiscal 
Year 2019-20, passed by the following vote: Ayes: Boardmembers 
Finlay, Maddock and Vice Chair Gerould.  Noes: None. 
Abstentions: None. Absent: None. 

 
REPORTS OF OFFICERS 

 
 Executive Director Nicolas Traylor acknowledged former 
Rent Board Chair, David Gray and thanked him on the behalf of 
staff for his service and leadership while serving as Chair of the 
Rent Board.   
 
 Vice Chair Gerould, Boardmember Maddock, and 
Boardmember Finlay also acknowledged David Gray for his 
service as the Rent Board Chair, noting that they enjoyed working 
with him. They also mentioned that he brought a lot of knowledge 
and passion about the City of Richmond to the Rent Board and that 



                                                                     ITEM H-1 
                                                              ATTACHMENT 1 

Rb19June2019 
Page 6 of 6 

 

they appreciate all the work he has done. They also mentioned that 
he will be missed and wished him and his family the best of luck in 
their future endeavors.   
 
 Former Chair, David Gray responded, saying thank you to 
everyone on the Board and staff members. He also mentioned that 
it has been a privilege and honor to have worked with staff and 
Boardmembers and to have the trust and the confidence of Mayor 
Butt and the City Council to Chair Richmond’s Rent Board.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 
7:02 P.M.  
 

 
       
    Cynthia Shaw and Bailey Maher 

             Staff Clerks  
 
 

    (SEAL) 
     
   
 
 Approved: 
 
 
 
                    
Emma Gerould, Vice Chair 



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM  
Department: Rent Program Department Head: Nicolas Traylor Phone: 620-6564 
   
Meeting Date: July 17, 2019 Final Decision Date Deadline:  July 17, 2019 

 
STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE: The Monthly Activity Report is designed to provide members of the Rent Board and 
Richmond community with a summary of the Rent Program’s activities for the month. Staff members find it timely to begin 
producing such reports on a monthly basis. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             
INDICATE APPROPRIATE BODY  

 City Council  Redevelopment 
Agency 

 Housing Authority  Surplus Property 
Authority 

 Joint Powers 
Financing Authority 

 Finance 
Standing 
Committee 

 Public Safety Public 
Services Standing 
Committee 

 Local Reuse Authority Other: Rent Board 

    
 

  

ITEM   

 Presentation/Proclamation/Commendation (3-Minute Time Limit) 

 Public Hearing    Regulation    Other: CONSENT CALENDAR  
 Contract/Agreement   Rent Board As Whole 
 Grant Application/Acceptance  Claims Filed Against City of Richmond     

 Resolution     Video/PowerPoint Presentation (contact KCRT @ 620.6759)  

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO: 

H-2. 
 

 

 
rev 2/06  P:\City_Managers\Agenda Rqst  Formrev.doc 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  RECEIVE the June 2019 Rent Program Monthly Report - Rent Program (Paige Roosa 620-
6537). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



This page intentionally left blank 



 

440 Civic Center Plaza, Richmond, CA 94804-1630 
Telephone: 510-234-RENT (7368)   Fax: (510) 307-8149   www.richmondrent.org 

CITY OF RICHMOND RENT PROGRAM 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO:  Members of the Rent Board 
 
FROM: Paige Roosa, Deputy Director 
 
DATE:  July 17, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: JUNE 2019 MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 
 
Introduction 
 
The Monthly Activity Report is designed to provide members of the Rent Board and Richmond 
community with a summary of the Rent Program’s activities for the month. It is anticipated that 
the format, content, and detail of this report will evolve over time. Feedback concerning this 
report may be submitted via email to rent@ci.richmond.ca.us or by calling (510) 234-RENT 
(7368). 
 
June Agency Highlights 
 
The Rent Program collected over $180,000 in Rental Housing Fee revenue during the month of 
June, allowing the Agency to close the 2018-19 Fiscal Year with revenue exceeding expenditures.  
Aggressive collection efforts in the latter half of the 2018-19 fiscal year allowed the Rent 
Program to close the 2018-19 fiscal year with a surplus of over $120,000. This amount is a 
preliminary estimate; fiscal year 2018-19 invoices mailed during the fiscal year will continue to 
be credited to the 2018-19 fiscal year through October. The Government Finance Officers 
Association recommends governmental agencies maintain operating reserves at 17% of total 
budgeted expenditures. As such, surplus revenue collected in the fiscal year 2018-19 fiscal year 
will help to build up such reserves. Collection efforts are ongoing. On June 24, 2019, staff 
members released a Request for Proposals for collection agency services, consistent with the 
Board’s direction at their meeting on June 19, 2019, to collect all outstanding revenue. We will 
continue to keep the Board apprised of our progress. 
 
Rent Program staff engaged community members at the City’s annual Juneteenth celebration to 
spread the word about the Rent Ordinance. 
Richmond’s annual Juneteenth celebration at Nicholl 
Park, like the Cinco de Mayo festival, presents a 
unique opportunity for the Rent Program to engage 
community members who may not otherwise be 
aware of the Program’s existence. On Saturday, June 
15, 2019, Rent Program Services Analyst Philip 
Verma, Administrative Student Intern Moises 
Serano, Administrative Analyst Cynthia Shaw, Staff 
Attorney Charles Oshinuga, Executive Director 
Nicolas Traylor and I hosted a table alongside other 
City departments to distribute information and 
promotional materials about the Rent Ordinance and Rent Program.  

mailto:rent@ci.richmond.ca.us


ITEM H-2 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
The June Community Workshop, designed specifically for Richmond realtors and property 
managers, provided an overview of local and state housing laws relevant to real estate and 
property management professionals. 
The June Community Workshop was attended by 41 community members and covered topics 
such as applicability of the Rent Ordinance to various types of properties, rent increase and 
termination of tenancy requirements, the eviction process in Richmond, how the Rent 
Ordinance applies to rental properties for which ownership is transferred or in the case of 
foreclosure, the Relocation Ordinance, Rent Adjustment Petition Process, and relevant 
California civil codes. Rent Program Services Analyst Vickie Medina led a detailed, technical 
presentation on the Rent Ordinance tailored to issues and situations experienced by real estate 
and property management professionals. Following the presentation, community members 
were provided an opportunity to ask questions of staff. Presentation materials are accessible at 
http://www.ci.richmond.ca.us/3541/Workshops.  
 
Summary of Activities 
 
I. Department Unit Activities 
 
FRONT OFFICE UNIT Occurrences 
Persons Assisted By Front Office Unit (without referral to an Analyst) 165 
Declarations of Exemption Processed 21 
Enrollment Forms Processed 38 
Hard Copy Termination Notices Processed 14 
Hard Copy Rent Increase Notices Processed 6 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION UNIT Occurrences 
Total Consultations Provided by a Rent Program Services Analyst 413 

Calls Received (Phone Counseling Sessions) 218 
Walk-Ins (Includes Appointments) 105 
Emails Received 90 

Total Consultations Provided in a Language other than English 80 
Consultations Provided in Spanish 78 
Consultations Provided in Cantonese 2 

Legal Service Referral Forms Completed 6 
Informal Mediations Conducted 2 
Courtesy Compliance Letters Mailed 4 
Invoices Generated 12 
Community Workshop Attendees (6/29/19 – Realtor and Property Manager-Focused 
Workshop) 41 

Tenants Assisted 80 
Landlords Assisted 51 

http://www.ci.richmond.ca.us/3541/Workshops


ITEM H-2 

Page 3 of 4 
 

PUBLIC INFORMATION UNIT (continued) Occurrences 

Property Managers Assisted 
 7 

Attorneys Assisted 1 

Process Servers Assisted 1 

Realtors Assisted 3 

Prospective Purchasers of Rental Property Assisted 2 
 
BILLING AND REGISTRATION UNIT Occurrences 
Total Consultations with a Billing and Registration Unit Staff Member 134 

Phone Call Consultations 91 
Walk-In Consultations 2 
Email Consultations 41 

Enrollment/Tenancy Registration Packets Mailed 103 
Enrollment Forms Processed 121 
Invoices Generated 955 
Payments/Checks Processed 105 
Compliance Actions (reviewing records, exemption statuses, owner addresses) 81 
Property Information Updated 458 
Payments Returned 2 
Refunds Issued 2 
Total Monthly Revenue Collected (06/01/19 – 06/30/19) $181,017 
Total Revenue Collected in FY 2018-19 (through 06/30/19) $2,191,879 
Total Revenue Collected in FY 2017-18 (07/01/17 – 06/30/18) $1,878,330 
 
LEGAL UNIT Occurrences 
Public Records Act Requests Received 1 
Owner Move-In Termination Notices Reviewed 3 
Withdrawal from Rental Market Notices Reviewed 1 
 
HEARINGS UNIT Occurrences 
Total Consultations with Hearings Unit Coordinator 48 

Calls/Placed Received (Regarding Hearings and Petitions) 9 
Walk-Ins (Regarding Hearings and Petitions) 8 
Emails Sent/Received (Regarding Hearings and Petitions) 31 

Total Tenant Petitions Received 4 
Tenant Petition Based on Multiple Grounds Received 2 



ITEM H-2 

Page 4 of 4 
 

HEARINGS UNIT (continued) Occurrences 

Tenant Petition for Failure to Pay Relocation Payment Petitions Received 2 
Total Other Petitions/Submissions Received 1 

Requests for a Continuance of the Hearing Process Received 1 
Total Number of Cases Closed 8 

Decisions Ordered 3 
Cases Settled 4 
Petitions Withdrawn 1 

 
II. Online Notices Filed with the Rent Program 
 

Type of Form 
Monthly 

Submissions/ 
Notices Filed 

Prior Month 
Total 

% Change from 
Prior Month 

Proof of Excess Rent Refund 0 4 -100% 
Change in Terms of Tenancy Notices Filed 16 12 33.3% 

Rent Increase Notices Filed 79 78 1.3% 
Termination Notices Filed1 210 181 16% 

Applicable Just Cause for Eviction – 
Nonpayment of Rent 192 168 14.3% 

Applicable Just Cause for Eviction – 
Breach of Lease 12 10 20% 

Applicable Just Cause for Eviction - 
Nuisance 2 1 100% 

Applicable Just Cause for Eviction – 
Owner Move In 3 0 100% 

Applicable Just Cause for Eviction – 
Failure to Give Access 1 0 100% 

Agent Authorization 7 0 100% 
Total Online Form Submissions 312 275 13.4% 
 

                                                 
1 Note: Termination Notices filed with the Rent Program does not indicate the number of Unlawful 
Detainer (eviction) lawsuits filed in court. In some cases, the Tenant may cure the issue for the notice (e.g. 
Tenant pays the rent that is due) and the eviction process is not initiated. 



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM  
Department: Rent Program Department Head: Nicolas Traylor Phone: 620-6564 
   
Meeting Date: July 17, 2019 Final Decision Date Deadline:  July 17, 2019 

 
STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE: The Rent Program receives monthly variance reports from the City of Richmond Finance 
Department. These reports provide useful information on the Rent Program’s revenues and expenditures throughout the 
fiscal year. Finance Department staff members have agreed to provide these reports to staff on a schedule that will permit 
them to be included in the agenda for the Rent Board’s regularly scheduled meetings. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             
INDICATE APPROPRIATE BODY  

 City Council  Redevelopment 
Agency 

 Housing Authority  Surplus Property 
Authority 

 Joint Powers 
Financing Authority 

 Finance 
Standing 
Committee 

 Public Safety Public 
Services Standing 
Committee 

 Local Reuse Authority Other: Rent Board 

    
 

  

ITEM   

 Presentation/Proclamation/Commendation (3-Minute Time Limit) 

 Public Hearing    Regulation    Other: CONSENT CALENDAR  
 Contract/Agreement   Rent Board As Whole 
 Grant Application/Acceptance  Claims Filed Against City of Richmond     

 Resolution     Video/PowerPoint Presentation (contact KCRT @ 620.6759)  

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO: 

H-3. 
 

 

 
rev 2/06  P:\City_Managers\Agenda Rqst  Formrev.doc 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: RECEIVE the Rent Program FY 2018-19 Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report through 
June 2019 – Rent Program (Paige Roosa 620-6537). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



This page intentionally left blank 



Rent Program

FY2018-19 Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

Per 1 Per 2 Per 3 Per 4 Per 5 Per 6 Per 7 Per 8 Per 9 Per 10 Per 11 Per 12

Jul-2018 Aug-2018 Sept-2018 Oct-2018 Nov-2018 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 June-19

CHARACTER OBJECT ORIGINAL BUDGET REVISED BUDGET MTD ACTUAL MTD ACTUAL MTD ACTUAL MTD ACTUAL MTD ACTUAL MTD ACTUAL MTD ACTUAL MTD ACTUAL MTD ACTUAL MTD ACTUAL MTD ACTUAL MTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES YTD TOTAL AVAILABLE BUDGET % USED

34 LICENSES, PRMITS&FEES 340445 FEES/Admin Fees (2,804,925.00)            (2,804,925.00)          (61,153.75)          (87,687.78)          (49,762.50)          (491,811.00)       (51,052.25)          (74,694.25)          (128,623.00)       (136,885.00)       (203,562.00)       (455,583.25)       (268,649.75)       (180,238.50)       (2,189,703.03)            (615,221.97)                  78.1%

TOTAL LICENSES, PRMITS&FEES (2,804,925.00)            (2,804,925.00)         (61,153.75)         (87,687.78)         (49,762.50)         (491,811.00)       (51,052.25)         (74,694.25)         (128,623.00)       (136,885.00)       (203,562.00)       (455,583.25)       (268,649.75)       (180,238.50)       -                              (2,189,703.03)           (615,221.97)                  78.1%

38 OTHER REVENUE 364855 OTHER REV/Misc Other Revenue (20.60)                  (75.00)                  (22.40)                  (15.00)                  -                       -                       (133.00)                       133.00                           100.0%

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE -                               -                            -                       (20.60)                 -                       -                       -                       (75.00)                 -                       -                       (22.40)                 (15.00)                 -                       -                       -                              (133.00)                      133.00                           100.0%

TOTAL REVENUE (2,804,925.00)            (2,804,925.00)         (61,153.75)         (87,708.38)         (49,762.50)         (491,811.00)       (51,052.25)         (74,769.25)         (128,623.00)       (136,885.00)       (203,584.40)       (455,598.25)       (268,649.75)       (180,238.50)       -                              (2,189,836.03)           (615,088.97)                  78.1%

40 SALARIES AND WAGES 400001 SALARIES & WAGES/Executive 470,660.00                 470,660.00              43,808.34           44,156.70           44,212.68           44,212.68           44,212.68           44,212.68           44,212.68           44,212.68           44,212.68           44,212.68           44,212.68           44,212.68           530,091.84                (59,431.84)                    112.6%

40 SALARIES AND WAGES 400002 SALARIES & WAGES/Mgmt-Local 21 242,235.00                 339,735.00              19,837.94           19,837.94           19,837.94           29,118.23           26,024.80           24,445.70           25,570.84           26,665.44           26,665.44           26,665.44           24,639.74           24,842.31           294,151.76                45,583.24                      86.6%

40 SALARIES AND WAGES 400003 SALARIES & WAGES/Local 1021 119,474.00                 119,474.00              10,783.02           10,783.02           10,783.02           10,783.02           10,987.78           10,987.78           10,987.78           10,987.78           10,987.78           10,987.78           9,632.56             10,174.65           128,865.97                (9,391.97)                       107.9%

40 SALARIES AND WAGES 400006 SALARIES & WAGES/PT- Temp 77,530.00                   77,530.00                 2,276.74             5,707.84             4,616.42             2,981.22             4,401.34             4,113.23             2,902.15             4,570.85             3,801.24             3,726.60             3,590.29             4,395.86             47,083.78                   30,446.22                      60.7%

40 SALARIES AND WAGES 400031 OVERTIME/General 12,000.00                   12,000.00                 317.29                 70.53                   14.11                   -                       562.34                 1,191.51             270.53                 755.47                 613.82                 500.50                 482.16                 4,778.26                     7,221.74                        39.8%

40 SALARIES AND WAGES 400048 OTHER PAY/Bilingual Pay 1,674.00                     1,674.00                   549.59                 484.82                 484.82                 484.82                 546.69                 776.66                 592.73                 614.62                 614.62                 614.62                 614.62                 614.62                 6,993.23                     (5,319.23)                       417.8%

40 SALARIES AND WAGES 400049 OTHER PAY/Auto Allowance 4,200.00                     4,200.00                   350.00                 350.00                 350.00                 350.00                 350.00                 350.00                 350.00                 350.00                 350.00                 350.00                 350.00                 350.00                 4,200.00                     -                                  100.0%

40 SALARIES AND WAGES 400050 OTHER PAY/Medical- in Lieu of 4,200.00                     4,200.00                   350.00                 350.00                 200.00                 200.00                 200.00                 200.00                 200.00                 200.00                 200.00                 200.00                 200.00                 200.00                 2,700.00                     1,500.00                        64.3%

40 SALARIES AND WAGES 400079 COMP ABSENCES/WC-Prof-Mgt-Tec -                             1,350.47             135.05                 1,485.52                     (1,485.52)                       #DIV/0!

TOTAL SALARIES AND WAGES 931,973.00                 1,029,473.00           78,272.92           81,740.85           80,498.99           88,129.97           87,285.63           86,277.56           85,086.71           88,356.84           87,445.58           87,257.62           85,072.52           84,925.17           -                              1,020,350.36             9,122.64                        99.1%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400103 P-ROLL BEN/Medicare Tax-ER Shr 12,303.00                   12,303.00                 1,160.03             1,188.56             1,180.49             1,292.29             1,269.08             1,255.38             1,237.20             1,295.50             1,271.41             1,268.68             1,237.00             1,245.47             14,901.09                   (2,598.09)                       121.1%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400104 P-ROLL BEN/PERS Benefits 20,717.85           16,042.21           36,760.06                   (36,760.06)                    100.0%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400105 P-ROLL BEN/Health Insurance Be 142,999.00                 142,999.00              11,256.12           11,256.12           12,037.77           13,601.43           12,819.60           12,629.14           12,629.14           12,629.14           12,629.14           12,629.14           12,629.14           12,629.14           149,375.02                (6,376.02)                       104.5%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400106 P-ROLL BEN/Dental Insurance 13,347.00                   13,347.00                 1,108.35             1,108.35             1,108.35             1,354.65             1,231.50             1,231.50             1,231.50             1,231.50             1,231.50             1,231.50             1,231.50             1,231.50             14,531.70                   (1,184.70)                       108.9%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400109 P-ROLL BEN/Employee Assistance 414.00                         414.00                      32.76                   32.76                   32.76                   40.04                   36.40                   36.40                   36.40                   36.40                   36.40                   36.40                   36.40                   36.40                   429.52                        (15.52)                            103.7%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400110 P-ROLL BEN/Professional Dev-Mg 5,250.00                     5,250.00                   1,500.00             686.09                 750.00                 63.91                   727.81                 3,727.81                     1,522.19                        71.0%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400111 P-ROLL BEN/Vision 1,953.00                     1,953.00                   162.90                 162.90                 144.90                 177.10                 161.00                 161.00                 161.00                 161.00                 161.00                 161.00                 161.00                 161.00                 1,935.80                     17.20                              99.1%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400112 P-ROLL BEN/Life Insurance 2,730.00                     2,730.00                   423.58                 423.58                 423.58                 511.43                 471.34                 471.34                 471.34                 471.34                 471.34                 471.34                 471.34                 475.49                 5,557.04                     (2,827.04)                       203.6%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400114 P-ROLL BEN/Long Term Disabilit 8,712.00                     8,712.00                   721.04                 724.02                 724.02                 873.74                 798.88                 759.03                 806.63                 806.63                 806.63                 806.63                 773.95                 806.63                 9,407.83                     (695.83)                          108.0%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400116 P-ROLL BEN/Unemployment Ins 4,104.00                     4,104.00                   456.00                 456.00                 418.00                 494.00                 456.00                 456.00                 456.00                 456.00                 456.00                 456.00                 456.00                 456.00                 5,472.00                     (1,368.00)                       133.3%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400117 P-ROLL BEN/Personal/Prof Dev 1,500.00                     1,500.00                   750.00                 750.00                        750.00                           50.0%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400121 P-ROLL BEN/Worker Comp-Clerica 10,023.00                   10,023.00                 1,038.35             1,351.44             1,224.08             1,033.25             1,198.97             1,165.35             1,024.02             1,218.76             1,128.94             1,120.23             1,104.32             1,198.33             13,806.04                   (3,783.04)                       137.7%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400122 P-ROLL BEN/Worker Comp-Prof 52,605.00                   52,605.00                 5,339.91             5,369.12             5,373.82             6,152.44             5,892.90             5,760.41             5,854.82             5,946.66             5,946.66             5,946.66             5,833.35             5,935.32             69,352.07                   (16,747.07)                    131.8%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400124 P-ROLL BEN/CON-MEDICL EE Share (7,500.00)                    (7,500.00)                 -                               (7,500.00)                       0.0%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400127 P-ROLL BEN/OPEB 34,139.00                   34,139.00                 3,052.68             3,066.98             3,069.28             3,449.92             3,331.44             3,266.68             3,312.82             3,357.72             3,357.72             3,357.72             3,357.72             3,357.72             39,338.40                   (5,199.40)                       115.2%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400128 P-ROLL BEN/Pension Stabilizatn 547.27                 274.47                 (821.74)               -                               -                                  100.0%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400130 P-ROLL BEN/PARS Benefits 29.60                   75.12                   60.19                   38.75                   57.47                   56.07                   38.48                   59.42                   49.42                   48.45                   49.12                   57.15                   619.24                        (619.24)                          100.0%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400131 P-ROLL BEN/CON-OPEB-EE Share (7,200.00)                    (7,200.00)                 -                               (7,200.00)                       0.0%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400149 P-ROLL BEN/PERS-Misc 104,346.00                 104,346.00              4,711.56             9,423.12             10,584.18           10,230.52           10,061.72           10,179.48           10,319.16           10,319.16           10,319.16           10,065.13           10,006.24           106,219.43                (1,873.43)                       101.8%

41 FRINGE BENEFITS 400151 P-ROLL BEN/PERS-Misc (UAL) 105,819.00                 105,819.00              11,337.66           12,597.40           12,597.40           12,597.40           12,597.40           12,597.40           12,597.40           12,597.40           12,597.40           12,597.40           124,714.26                (18,895.26)                    117.9%

TOTAL FRINGE BENEFITS 485,544.00                 485,544.00              47,546.44           46,243.19           47,244.11           52,950.62           50,552.50           49,971.33           50,036.23           51,336.63           49,640.98           50,450.31           50,003.37           50,921.60           596,897.31                (111,353.31)                  122.9%

42 PROF & ADMIN SERVICES 400201 PROF SVCS/Professional Svcs 169,500.00                 71,000.00                 -                       1,084.39             11,070.28           9,857.86             789.28                 1,483.92             406.12                 216.84                 37.70                   3,870.90             18,341.17                   47,158.46                   23,841.54                      66.4%

42 PROF & ADMIN SERVICES 400206 PROF SVCS/Legal Serv Cost 270,000.00                 276,250.00              6,250.00             18,750.00           6,364.02             6,250.00             25,000.00           12,500.00           6,250.00             6,250.00             6,250.00             7,701.82             18,750.00           61,048.18                   181,364.02                94,885.98                      65.7%

42 PROF & ADMIN SERVICES 400220 PROF SVCS/Info Tech Services 3,000.00                     3,000.00                   541.87                 1,833.33             2,375.20                     624.80                           79.2%

42 PROF & ADMIN SERVICES 400241 TRAVEL & TRNG/Meal Allowance -                               700.00                      359.24                 359.24                        340.76                           51.3%

42 PROF & ADMIN SERVICES 400242 TRAVEL & TRNG/Mileage 1,000.00                     1,300.00                   18.85                   203.60                 95.44                   902.79                 23.04                   1,243.72                     56.28                              95.7%

42 PROF & ADMIN SERVICES 400243 TRAVEL & TRNG/Conf, Mtng Trng 10,500.00                   10,500.00                 279.96                 279.96                        10,220.04                      2.7%

42 PROF & ADMIN SERVICES 400245 TRAVEL & TRNG/Tuition Rmb/Cer 800.00                 800.00                        (800.00)                          100.0%

42 PROF & ADMIN SERVICES 400261 DUES & PUB/Memberships & Dues 824.00                      823.75                 823.75                        0.25                                100.0%

42 PROF & ADMIN SERVICES 400262 DUES & PUB/Books & Subs 200.00                         200.00                      -                               200.00                           0.0%

42 PROF & ADMIN SERVICES 400263 DUES & PUB/Subscription 1,000.00                   250.00                 500.00                 750.00                        1,500.00                     (500.00)                          750.0%

42 PROF & ADMIN SERVICES 400271 AD & PROMO/Advertising&Promo 2,000.00                     2,000.00                   3.00                     655.00                 490.34                 410.88                 1,559.22                     440.78                           78.0%

42 PROF & ADMIN SERVICES 400272 AD & PROMO/Community Events 10,000.00                   10,000.00                 69.96                   74.93                   1,418.12             1,563.01                     8,436.99                        15.6%

42 PROF & ADMIN SERVICES 400280 ADM EXP/Program Supplies 708.75                 430.52                 423.05                 330.00                 506.25                 80.00                   843.13                 973.02                 4,294.72                     (4,294.72)                       100.0%

TOTAL PROF & ADMIN SERVICES 466,200.00                 376,774.00              -                       6,250.00             19,907.35           7,093.95             19,880.09           35,851.22           13,807.77           8,063.92             7,986.12             9,532.96             9,773.49             25,035.08           80,139.35                  243,321.30                133,452.70                   64.6%

43 OTHER OPERATING 400231 OFF EXP/Postage & Mailing 50,000.00                   47,000.00                 1,434.62             352.68                 442.11                 1,224.65             4,896.05             260.10                 366.75                 1,183.35             313.70                 802.08                 11,276.09                   35,723.91                      24.0%

43 OTHER OPERATING 400232 OFF EXP/Printing & Binding -                               -                             541.87                 966.21                 2,296.71             4,030.02             416.20                 2,569.57             333.03                 11,153.61                   (11,153.61)                    100.0%

43 OTHER OPERATING 400233 OFF EXP/Copying & Duplicating 5,000.00                     8,000.00                   27.54                   27.54                          7,972.46                        0.3%

43 OTHER OPERATING 400304 RENTAL EXP/Equipment Rental 5,000.00                     5,000.00                   8,581.25             139.30                 160.70                        8,881.25                     (3,881.25)                       177.6%

43 OTHER OPERATING 400321 MISC EXP/Misc Contrib 3,000.00                     3,000.00                   3,000.00             3,000.00                     -                                  100.0%

43 OTHER OPERATING 400322 MISC EXP/Misc Exp 10,000.00                   8,176.00                   376.21                 870.51                 101.22                 182.23                 136.91                 31.97                   171.00                 334.09                 364.51                 343.38                        2,912.03                     5,263.97                        35.6%

43 OTHER OPERATING 400341 OFF SUPP/Office Supplies 21,000.00                   7,000.00                   1,162.55             898.31                 101.48                 82.07                   509.51                 3,305.16             376.28                 931.70                 611.04                 248.04                 8,226.14                     (1,226.14)                       117.5%

43 OTHER OPERATING 400344 OFF SUPP/Computer Supplies 6,300.00                     6,300.00                   17.91                   5,895.26                     5,913.17                     386.83                           93.9%

TOTAL OTHER OPERATING 100,300.00                 84,476.00                -                       1,434.62             1,891.44             2,752.80             2,393.56             4,978.12             3,248.55             7,856.75             13,589.05           3,985.97             1,747.21             1,112.42             6,399.34                    51,389.83                  33,086.17                     60.8%

44 UTILITIES 400401 UTILITIES/Tel & Telegraph 1,200.00                     1,200.00                   -                       -                       115.56                 46.22                   161.78                        1,038.22                        13.5%

TOTAL UTILITIES 1,200.00                     1,200.00                  -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       115.56                -                       46.22                   -                              161.78                        1,038.22                        13.5%

46 PROVISION FOR INS LOSS 400552 PROV FR INS LOSS/Ins Gen Liab 25,000.00                   25,000.00                 -                       8,029.00             8,029.00                     16,971.00                      32.1%

TOTAL PROVISION FOR INS LOSS 25,000.00                   25,000.00                -                       -                       8,029.00             -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                              8,029.00                    16,971.00                     32.1%

47 COST POOL 400574 COST POOL/(ISF)-Gen Liability 55,701.00                   55,701.00                 4,639.00             4,642.00             4,642.00             4,642.00             4,642.00             4,642.00             4,642.00             4,642.00             4,642.00             4,642.00             4,642.00             4,642.00             55,701.00                   -                                  100.0%

47 COST POOL 400586 COST POOL/(CAP)- Admin Charges 51,454.00                   51,454.00                 4,286.00             4,288.00             4,288.00             4,288.00             4,288.00             4,288.00             4,288.00             4,288.00             4,288.00             4,288.00             4,288.00             4,288.00             51,454.00                   -                                  100.0%

47 COST POOL 400591 COST POOL/(IND)Civic Ctr Alloc 52,420.00                   52,420.00                 4,371.00             4,368.00             4,368.00             4,368.00             4,368.00             4,368.00             4,368.00             4,368.00             4,368.00             4,368.00             4,368.00             4,369.00             52,420.00                   -                                  100.0%

TOTAL COST POOL 159,575.00                 159,575.00              13,296.00           13,298.00           13,298.00           13,298.00           13,298.00           13,298.00           13,298.00           13,298.00           13,298.00           13,298.00           13,298.00           13,299.00           -                              159,575.00                -                                  100.0%

48 ASSET/CAPITAL OUTLAY 400601 NONCAP ASST/Comp Hrdware<5K 21,683.00                   21,683.00                 (11,649.27)          -                       11,649.27           6,358.32                     6,358.32                     15,324.68                      29.3%

48 ASSET/CAPITAL OUTLAY 400604 NONCAP ASST/Furniture <5k 500.00                      13,328.27           13,328.27           26,656.54                   (26,156.54)                    5331.3%

48 ASSET/CAPITAL OUTLAY 400704 CAP OUTLAY/Furn & Equip>5,000 13,500.00                 9,996.20             3,332.07             (13,328.27)          (13,328.27)          171.73                        (13,156.54)                 26,656.54                      -97.5%

TOTAL ASSET/CAPITAL OUTLAY 21,683.00                   35,683.00                (11,649.27)         -                       11,649.27           -                       -                       9,996.20             -                       -                       -                       3,332.07             -                       -                       6,530.05                    19,858.32                  15,824.68                     55.7%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,191,475.00             2,197,725.00           127,466.09        148,966.66        182,518.16        164,225.34        173,409.78        200,372.43        165,477.26        168,912.14        171,959.73        167,972.49        159,894.59        175,339.49        93,068.74                  2,099,582.90             98,142.10                     95.5%

NET OPERATING (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT (613,450.00)               (607,200.00)             66,312.34           61,258.28           132,755.66        (327,585.66)       122,357.53        125,603.18        36,854.26           32,027.14           (31,624.67)         (287,625.76)       (108,755.16)       (4,899.01)            93,068.74                  (90,253.13)                 (516,946.87)                  

Page 1 of 1

ITEM H-3



This page intentionally left blank 



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM  
Department: Rent Program Department Head: Nicolas Traylor Phone: 620-6564 
   
Meeting Date:  July 17, 2019 Final Decision Date Deadline:  July 17, 2019 

 
STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE:  Legislative bodies in the State of California must adhere to the Ralph M. Brown Act, found 
in Section 54950-54963 of the California Government Code. Education regarding the Ralph M. Brown Act is necessary for 
all members of the Rent Board. Additionally, because the Rent Board is a legislative body, to conduct is business in a 
consistent and fair manner, it is important to be familiar with Rosenberg’s Rules of Order.  To ensure efficiency and 
compliance with the Brown Act, staff members intend to bi-annually provide Board members training in both the Brown Act 
and Rosenberg’s Rules of Order. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             
INDICATE APPROPRIATE BODY  

 City Council  Redevelopment 
Agency 

 Housing Authority  Surplus Property 
Authority 

 Joint Powers 
Financing Authority 

 Finance 
Standing 
Committee 

 Public Safety Public 
Services Standing 
Committee 

 Local Reuse Authority Other: Rent Board 

    
 

  

ITEM   

 Presentation/Proclamation/Commendation (3-Minute Time Limit) 

 Public Hearing    Regulation    Other:  
 Contract/Agreement   Rent Board As Whole 
 Grant Application/Acceptance  Claims Filed Against City of Richmond     

 Resolution     Video/PowerPoint Presentation (contact KCRT @ 620.6759)  

 

rev 2/06  P:\City_Managers\Agenda Rqst  Formrev.doc 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   RECEIVE training on the Brown Act and Rosenberg’s Rules of Order – Rent Program 
(Nicolas Traylor/Charles Oshinuga 620-6564). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 

I-1. 



This page intentionally left blank 



 

440 Civic Center Plaza, Richmond, CA 94804-1630 
Telephone: (510) 234-RENT (7368)   Fax: (510) 307-8149   www.richmondrent.org 

CITY OF RICHMOND RENT PROGRAM 

ffffff 
 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: July 17, 2019 
 
TO: Members of the Rent Board 
 
FROM: Nicolas Traylor, Executive Director 
 Charles Oshinuga, Staff Attorney 
   
SUBJECT: Brown Act and Rules of Rosenberg Training  
 
STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE: 
 
Legislative bodies in the State of California must adhere to the Ralph M. Brown Act, 
found in Section 54950-54963 of the California Government Code. Education regarding 
the Ralph M. Brown Act is necessary for all members of the Rent Board. Additionally, 
because the Rent Board is a legislative body, to conduct is business in a consistent and 
fair manner, it is important to be familiar with Rosenberg’s Rules of Order.  To ensure 
efficiency and compliance with the Brown Act, staff members intend to bi-annually 
provide Board members training in both the Brown Act and Rosenberg’s Rules of Order.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
RECEIVE training on the Brown Act and Rosenberg’s Rules of Order (Nicolas 
Traylor/Charles Oshinuga 620-6564).  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no fiscal impact related to this item. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Receive a PowerPoint and oral presentation on the Brown Act and Rosenberg’s Rules 
of Order. 
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
   
Attachment 1 – Rosenberg Rules of Order simplified handout 
 
Attachment 2 – Rosenberg Rules of Order materials.     
 

  

AGENDA REPORT 



This page intentionally left blank 



ROSENBERG’S RULES OF ORDER 
 CHEAT SHEET 

 
To: You say: Interrupt 

Speaker 
Second 
Needed 

Debatable Amendable Vote 
Needed 

Adjourn  "I move that we adjourn" 
(Only needed prior to the end of the agenda) 

No Yes No No Majority 

Recess "I move that we recess until…" No Yes No Yes Majority 

Complain about noise, 
room temp., etc. 

"Point of privilege" Yes No No No Chair 
Decides 

Suspend further 
consideration of 
something 

"I move that we table it" No Yes No No Majority 

End debate "I move the previous question" or “Call the question” No Yes No No 2/3 

Postpone 
consideration of 
something 

"I move we postpone this matter until…" No Yes Yes Yes Majority 

Introduce a motion “I move that…” or “I move to…” No Yes Yes Yes Majority 

Amend a motion "I move that this motion be amended by…" (You 
can also ask for a friendly amendment, which is 
less formal; if mover and second concur, no vote 
needed)  

No Yes Yes Yes Majority 

Refer to a Committee “I move that the question be referred to a 
committee for more study” 

No Yes Yes Yes Majority 

The above listed motions and points are listed in established order of precedence. When any one of them is pending, you may not introduce another 
that is listed below, but you may introduce another that is listed above it. 

 
To: You say: Interrupt 

Speaker 
Second 
Needed 

Debatable Amendable Vote Needed 

Object to procedure 
or personal affront 

"Point of order" Yes No No No Chair decides 

Request information "Point of information" Yes No No No None 

Object to considering 
some undiplomatic or 
improper matter 

"I object to consideration of this question" 
(This would generally just be used if something is 
not on the agenda)   

Yes No No No 2/3 

Reconsider 
something already 
disposed of 

"I move we now (or later) reconsider our action 
relative to…" (Only a member of the prevailing 
side can make a motion to reconsider) 

Yes Yes Only if 
original 
motion 
was 
debatabl
e 

No Majority 

Vote on a ruling by the Chair "I appeal the Chair’s decision" Yes Yes Yes No Majority 

The motions, points and proposals listed above have no established order of preference; any of them may be introduced at any time except when 
meeting is considering one of the top three matters listed from the first chart (Motion to Adjourn, Recess or Point of Privilege). 

ITEM I-1 
ATTACHMENT 1



This page intentionally left blank 



Rosenberg’s Rules of Order
REVISED 2011

Simple Rules of Parliamentary Procedure for the 21st Century

By Judge Dave Rosenberg

ITEM I-1 
ATTACHMENT 2



ii

MISSION and CORE BELIEFS
To expand and protect local control for cities through education and advocacy to enhance the quality of life for all Californians.

VISION
To be recognized and respected as the leading advocate for the common interests of California’s cities.

About the League of California Cities
Established in 1898, the League of California Cities is a member organization that represents California’s incorporated cities. 

The League strives to protect the local authority and automony of city government and help California’s cities effectively 

serve their residents. In addition to advocating on cities’ behalf at the state capitol, the League provides its members with 

professional development programs and information resources, conducts education conferences and research, and publishes 

Western City magazine.

© 2011 League of California Cities. All rights reserved.

About the Author
Dave Rosenberg is a Superior Court Judge in Yolo County. He has served as presiding judge of his court, and as 

presiding judge of the Superior Court Appellate Division. He also has served as chair of the Trial Court Presiding Judges 

Advisory Committee (the committee composed of all 58 California presiding judges) and as an advisory member of the 

California Judicial Council. Prior to his appointment to the bench, Rosenberg was member of the Yolo County Board of 

Supervisors, where he served two terms as chair. Rosenberg also served on the Davis City Council, including two terms 

as mayor. He has served on the senior staff of two governors, and worked for 19 years in private law practice. Rosenberg 

has served as a member and chair of numerous state, regional and local boards. Rosenberg chaired the California State 

Lottery Commission, the California Victim Compensation and Government Claims Board, the Yolo-Solano Air Quality 

Management District, the Yolo County Economic Development Commission, and the Yolo County Criminal Justice 

Cabinet. For many years, he has taught classes on parliamentary procedure and has served as parliamentarian for large 

and small bodies.

ITEM I-1 
ATTACHMENT 2



1

Table of Contents

About the Author.............................................................................................................ii

Introduction.....................................................................................................................2

Establishing a Quorum....................................................................................................2

The Role of the Chair.......................................................................................................2

The Basic Format for an Agenda Item Discussion.........................................................2

Motions in General..........................................................................................................3

The Three Basic Motions.................................................................................................3

Multiple Motions Before the Body..................................................................................4

To Debate or Not to Debate.............................................................................................4

Majority and Super-Majority Votes................................................................................5

Counting Votes.................................................................................................................5

The Motion to Reconsider...............................................................................................6

Courtesy and Decorum...................................................................................................7

Special Notes About Public Input...................................................................................7

ITEM I-1 
ATTACHMENT 2



2

Establishing a Quorum
The starting point for a meeting is the establishment of a quorum. 
A quorum is defined as the minimum number of members of the 
body who must be present at a meeting for business to be legally 
transacted. The default rule is that a quorum is one more than half 
the body. For example, in a five-member body a quorum is three. 
When the body has three members present, it can legally transact 
business. If the body has less than a quorum of members present, it 
cannot legally transact business. And even if the body has a quorum 
to begin the meeting, the body can lose the quorum during the 
meeting when a member departs (or even when a member leaves the 
dais). When that occurs the body loses its ability to transact business 
until and unless a quorum is reestablished. 

The default rule, identified above, however, gives way to a specific 
rule of the body that establishes a quorum. For example, the rules of 
a particular five-member body may indicate that a quorum is four 
members for that particular body. The body must follow the rules it 
has established for its quorum. In the absence of such a specific rule, 
the quorum is one more than half the members of the body.

The Role of the Chair
While all members of the body should know and understand the 
rules of parliamentary procedure, it is the chair of the body who is 
charged with applying the rules of conduct of the meeting. The chair 
should be well versed in those rules. For all intents and purposes, the 
chair makes the final ruling on the rules every time the chair states an 
action. In fact, all decisions by the chair are final unless overruled by 
the body itself. 

Since the chair runs the conduct of the meeting, it is usual courtesy 
for the chair to play a less active role in the debate and discussion 
than other members of the body. This does not mean that the chair 
should not participate in the debate or discussion. To the contrary, as 
a member of the body, the chair has the full right to participate in the 
debate, discussion and decision-making of the body. What the chair 
should do, however, is strive to be the last to speak at the discussion 
and debate stage. The chair should not make or second a motion 
unless the chair is convinced that no other member of the body will 
do so at that point in time.

The Basic Format for an Agenda Item Discussion
Formal meetings normally have a written, often published agenda. 
Informal meetings may have only an oral or understood agenda. In 
either case, the meeting is governed by the agenda and the agenda 
constitutes the body’s agreed-upon roadmap for the meeting. Each 
agenda item can be handled by the chair in the following basic 
format:

Introduction

The rules of procedure at meetings should be simple enough for 
most people to understand. Unfortunately, that has not always been 
the case. Virtually all clubs, associations, boards, councils and bodies 
follow a set of rules — Robert’s Rules of Order — which are embodied 
in a small, but complex, book. Virtually no one I know has actually 
read this book cover to cover. Worse yet, the book was written for 
another time and for another purpose. If one is chairing or running 
a parliament, then Robert’s Rules of Order is a dandy and quite useful 
handbook for procedure in that complex setting. On the other hand, 
if one is running a meeting of say, a five-member body with a few 
members of the public in attendance, a simplified version of the rules 
of parliamentary procedure is in order.

Hence, the birth of Rosenberg’s Rules of Order.

What follows is my version of the rules of parliamentary procedure, 
based on my decades of experience chairing meetings in state and 
local government. These rules have been simplified for the smaller 
bodies we chair or in which we participate, slimmed down for the 
21st Century, yet retaining the basic tenets of order to which we have 
grown accustomed. Interestingly enough, Rosenberg’s Rules has found 
a welcoming audience. Hundreds of cities, counties, special districts, 
committees, boards, commissions, neighborhood associations and 
private corporations and companies have adopted Rosenberg’s Rules 
in lieu of Robert’s Rules because they have found them practical, 
logical, simple, easy to learn and user friendly. 

This treatise on modern parliamentary procedure is built on a 
foundation supported by the following four pillars: 

1.	 Rules should establish order. The first purpose of rules of 
parliamentary procedure is to establish a framework for the 
orderly conduct of meetings.

2.	 Rules should be clear. Simple rules lead to wider understanding 
and participation. Complex rules create two classes: those 
who understand and participate; and those who do not fully 
understand and do not fully participate.

3.	 Rules should be user friendly. That is, the rules must be simple 
enough that the public is invited into the body and feels that it 
has participated in the process.

4.	 Rules should enforce the will of the majority while protecting 
the rights of the minority. The ultimate purpose of rules of 
procedure is to encourage discussion and to facilitate decision 
making by the body. In a democracy, majority rules. The rules 
must enable the majority to express itself and fashion a result, 
while permitting the minority to also express itself, but not 
dominate, while fully participating in the process.

ITEM I-1 
ATTACHMENT 2



3

Ninth, the chair takes a vote. Simply asking for the “ayes” and then 
asking for the “nays” normally does this. If members of the body do 
not vote, then they “abstain.” Unless the rules of the body provide 
otherwise (or unless a super majority is required as delineated later 
in these rules), then a simple majority (as defined in law or the rules 
of the body as delineated later in these rules) determines whether the 
motion passes or is defeated. 

Tenth, the chair should announce the result of the vote and what 
action (if any) the body has taken. In announcing the result, the chair 
should indicate the names of the members of the body, if any, who 
voted in the minority on the motion. This announcement might take 
the following form: “The motion passes by a vote of 3-2, with Smith 
and Jones dissenting. We have passed the motion requiring a 10-day 
notice for all future meetings of this body.”

Motions in General
Motions are the vehicles for decision making by a body. It is usually 
best to have a motion before the body prior to commencing 
discussion of an agenda item. This helps the body focus.

Motions are made in a simple two-step process. First, the chair 
should recognize the member of the body. Second, the member 
of the body makes a motion by preceding the member’s desired 
approach with the words “I move … ”

A typical motion might be: “I move that we give a 10-day notice in 
the future for all our meetings.”

The chair usually initiates the motion in one of three ways:

1.	 Inviting the members of the body to make a motion, for 
example, “A motion at this time would be in order.” 

2.	 Suggesting a motion to the members of the body, “A motion 
would be in order that we give a 10-day notice in the future for all 
our meetings.” 

3.	 Making the motion. As noted, the chair has every right as a 
member of the body to make a motion, but should normally do 
so only if the chair wishes to make a motion on an item but is 
convinced that no other member of the body is willing to step 
forward to do so at a particular time.

The Three Basic Motions
There are three motions that are the most common and recur often 
at meetings:

The basic motion. The basic motion is the one that puts forward a 
decision for the body’s consideration. A basic motion might be: “I 
move that we create a five-member committee to plan and put on 
our annual fundraiser.” 

First, the chair should clearly announce the agenda item number and 
should clearly state what the agenda item subject is. The chair should 
then announce the format (which follows) that will be followed in 
considering the agenda item.

Second, following that agenda format, the chair should invite the 
appropriate person or persons to report on the item, including any 
recommendation that they might have. The appropriate person or 
persons may be the chair, a member of the body, a staff person, or a 
committee chair charged with providing input on the agenda item.

Third, the chair should ask members of the body if they have any 
technical questions of clarification. At this point, members of the 
body may ask clarifying questions to the person or persons who 
reported on the item, and that person or persons should be given 
time to respond.

Fourth, the chair should invite public comments, or if appropriate at 
a formal meeting, should open the public meeting for public input. 
If numerous members of the public indicate a desire to speak to 
the subject, the chair may limit the time of public speakers. At the 
conclusion of the public comments, the chair should announce that 
public input has concluded (or the public hearing, as the case may be, 
is closed).

Fifth, the chair should invite a motion. The chair should announce 
the name of the member of the body who makes the motion.

Sixth, the chair should determine if any member of the body wishes 
to second the motion. The chair should announce the name of the 
member of the body who seconds the motion. It is normally good 
practice for a motion to require a second before proceeding to 
ensure that it is not just one member of the body who is interested 
in a particular approach. However, a second is not an absolute 
requirement, and the chair can proceed with consideration and vote 
on a motion even when there is no second. This is a matter left to the 
discretion of the chair.

Seventh, if the motion is made and seconded, the chair should make 
sure everyone understands the motion. 

This is done in one of three ways:

1.	 The chair can ask the maker of the motion to repeat it;

2.	 The chair can repeat the motion; or

3.	 The chair can ask the secretary or the clerk of the body to repeat 
the motion.

Eighth, the chair should now invite discussion of the motion by the 
body. If there is no desired discussion, or after the discussion has 
ended, the chair should announce that the body will vote on the 
motion. If there has been no discussion or very brief discussion, then 
the vote on the motion should proceed immediately and there is no 
need to repeat the motion. If there has been substantial discussion, 
then it is normally best to make sure everyone understands the 
motion by repeating it.

ITEM I-1 
ATTACHMENT 2



4

First, the chair would deal with the third (the last) motion on the 
floor, the substitute motion. After discussion and debate, a vote 
would be taken first on the third motion. If the substitute motion 
passed, it would be a substitute for the basic motion and would 
eliminate it. The first motion would be moot, as would the second 
motion (which sought to amend the first motion), and the action on 
the agenda item would be completed on the passage by the body of 
the third motion (the substitute motion). No vote would be taken on 
the first or second motions. 

Second, if the substitute motion failed, the chair would then deal 
with the second (now the last) motion on the floor, the motion 
to amend. The discussion and debate would focus strictly on the 
amendment (should the committee be five or 10 members). If the 
motion to amend passed, the chair would then move to consider the 
main motion (the first motion) as amended. If the motion to amend 
failed, the chair would then move to consider the main motion (the 
first motion) in its original format, not amended.

Third, the chair would now deal with the first motion that was placed 
on the floor. The original motion would either be in its original 
format (five-member committee), or if amended, would be in its 
amended format (10-member committee). The question on the floor 
for discussion and decision would be whether a committee should 
plan and put on the annual fundraiser.

To Debate or Not to Debate
The basic rule of motions is that they are subject to discussion and 
debate. Accordingly, basic motions, motions to amend, and substitute 
motions are all eligible, each in their turn, for full discussion before 
and by the body. The debate can continue as long as members of the 
body wish to discuss an item, subject to the decision of the chair that 
it is time to move on and take action.

There are exceptions to the general rule of free and open debate 
on motions. The exceptions all apply when there is a desire of the 
body to move on. The following motions are not debatable (that 
is, when the following motions are made and seconded, the chair 
must immediately call for a vote of the body without debate on the 
motion): 

Motion to adjourn. This motion, if passed, requires the body to 
immediately adjourn to its next regularly scheduled meeting. It 
requires a simple majority vote.

Motion to recess. This motion, if passed, requires the body to 
immediately take a recess. Normally, the chair determines the length 
of the recess which may be a few minutes or an hour. It requires a 
simple majority vote.

Motion to fix the time to adjourn. This motion, if passed, requires 
the body to adjourn the meeting at the specific time set in the 
motion. For example, the motion might be: “I move we adjourn this 
meeting at midnight.” It requires a simple majority vote.

The motion to amend. If a member wants to change a basic motion 
that is before the body, they would move to amend it. A motion 
to amend might be: “I move that we amend the motion to have a 
10-member committee.” A motion to amend takes the basic motion 
that is before the body and seeks to change it in some way.

The substitute motion. If a member wants to completely do away 
with the basic motion that is before the body, and put a new motion 
before the body, they would move a substitute motion. A substitute 
motion might be: “I move a substitute motion that we cancel the 
annual fundraiser this year.” 

“Motions to amend” and “substitute motions” are often confused, but 
they are quite different, and their effect (if passed) is quite different. 
A motion to amend seeks to retain the basic motion on the floor, but 
modify it in some way. A substitute motion seeks to throw out the 
basic motion on the floor, and substitute a new and different motion 
for it. The decision as to whether a motion is really a “motion to 
amend” or a “substitute motion” is left to the chair. So if a member 
makes what that member calls a “motion to amend,” but the chair 
determines that it is really a “substitute motion,” then the chair’s 
designation governs.

A “friendly amendment” is a practical parliamentary tool that is 
simple, informal, saves time and avoids bogging a meeting down 
with numerous formal motions. It works in the following way: In the 
discussion on a pending motion, it may appear that a change to the 
motion is desirable or may win support for the motion from some 
members. When that happens, a member who has the floor may 
simply say, “I want to suggest a friendly amendment to the motion.” 
The member suggests the friendly amendment, and if the maker and 
the person who seconded the motion pending on the floor accepts 
the friendly amendment, that now becomes the pending motion on 
the floor. If either the maker or the person who seconded rejects the 
proposed friendly amendment, then the proposer can formally move 
to amend.

Multiple Motions Before the Body
There can be up to three motions on the floor at the same time. 
The chair can reject a fourth motion until the chair has dealt 
with the three that are on the floor and has resolved them. This 
rule has practical value. More than three motions on the floor at 
any given time is confusing and unwieldy for almost everyone, 
including the chair. 

When there are two or three motions on the floor (after motions and 
seconds) at the same time, the vote should proceed first on the last 
motion that is made. For example, assume the first motion is a basic 
“motion to have a five-member committee to plan and put on our 
annual fundraiser.” During the discussion of this motion, a member 
might make a second motion to “amend the main motion to have a 
10-member committee, not a five-member committee to plan and 
put on our annual fundraiser.” And perhaps, during that discussion, a 
member makes yet a third motion as a “substitute motion that we not 
have an annual fundraiser this year.” The proper procedure would be 
as follows:

ITEM I-1 
ATTACHMENT 2



5

Motion to close nominations. When choosing officers of the 
body (such as the chair), nominations are in order either from a 
nominating committee or from the floor of the body. A motion to 
close nominations effectively cuts off the right of the minority to 
nominate officers and it requires a two-thirds vote to pass.

Motion to object to the consideration of a question. Normally, such 
a motion is unnecessary since the objectionable item can be tabled or 
defeated straight up. However, when members of a body do not even 
want an item on the agenda to be considered, then such a motion is 
in order. It is not debatable, and it requires a two-thirds vote to pass.

Motion to suspend the rules. This motion is debatable, but requires 
a two-thirds vote to pass. If the body has its own rules of order, 
conduct or procedure, this motion allows the body to suspend the 
rules for a particular purpose. For example, the body (a private club) 
might have a rule prohibiting the attendance at meetings by non-club 
members. A motion to suspend the rules would be in order to allow 
a non-club member to attend a meeting of the club on a particular 
date or on a particular agenda item.

Counting Votes
The matter of counting votes starts simple, but can become 
complicated.

Usually, it’s pretty easy to determine whether a particular motion 
passed or whether it was defeated. If a simple majority vote is needed 
to pass a motion, then one vote more than 50 percent of the body is 
required. For example, in a five-member body, if the vote is three in 
favor and two opposed, the motion passes. If it is two in favor and 
three opposed, the motion is defeated.

If a two-thirds majority vote is needed to pass a motion, then how 
many affirmative votes are required? The simple rule of thumb is to 
count the “no” votes and double that count to determine how many 
“yes” votes are needed to pass a particular motion. For example, in 
a seven-member body, if two members vote “no” then the “yes” vote 
of at least four members is required to achieve a two-thirds majority 
vote to pass the motion. 

What about tie votes? In the event of a tie, the motion always fails since 
an affirmative vote is required to pass any motion. For example, in a 
five-member body, if the vote is two in favor and two opposed, with 
one member absent, the motion is defeated.

Vote counting starts to become complicated when members 
vote “abstain” or in the case of a written ballot, cast a blank (or 
unreadable) ballot. Do these votes count, and if so, how does one 
count them? The starting point is always to check the statutes.

In California, for example, for an action of a board of supervisors to 
be valid and binding, the action must be approved by a majority of the 
board. (California Government Code Section 25005.) Typically, this 
means three of the five members of the board must vote affirmatively 
in favor of the action. A vote of 2-1 would not be sufficient. A vote of 
3-0 with two abstentions would be sufficient. In general law cities in 

Motion to table. This motion, if passed, requires discussion of the 
agenda item to be halted and the agenda item to be placed on “hold.” 
The motion can contain a specific time in which the item can come 
back to the body. “I move we table this item until our regular meeting 
in October.” Or the motion can contain no specific time for the 
return of the item, in which case a motion to take the item off the 
table and bring it back to the body will have to be taken at a future 
meeting. A motion to table an item (or to bring it back to the body) 
requires a simple majority vote.

Motion to limit debate. The most common form of this motion is to 
say, “I move the previous question” or “I move the question” or “I call 
the question” or sometimes someone simply shouts out “question.” 
As a practical matter, when a member calls out one of these phrases, 
the chair can expedite matters by treating it as a “request” rather 
than as a formal motion. The chair can simply inquire of the body, 
“any further discussion?” If no one wishes to have further discussion, 
then the chair can go right to the pending motion that is on the floor. 
However, if even one person wishes to discuss the pending motion 
further, then at that point, the chair should treat the call for the 
“question” as a formal motion, and proceed to it. 

When a member of the body makes such a motion (“I move the 
previous question”), the member is really saying: “I’ve had enough 
debate. Let’s get on with the vote.” When such a motion is made, the 
chair should ask for a second, stop debate, and vote on the motion to 
limit debate. The motion to limit debate requires a two-thirds vote of 
the body. 

Note:  A motion to limit debate could include a time limit. For 
example: “I move we limit debate on this agenda item to 15 minutes.” 
Even in this format, the motion to limit debate requires a two-
thirds vote of the body. A similar motion is a motion to object to 
consideration of an item. This motion is not debatable, and if passed, 
precludes the body from even considering an item on the agenda. It 
also requires a two-thirds vote.

Majority and Super Majority Votes
In a democracy, a simple majority vote determines a question. A tie 
vote means the motion fails. So in a seven-member body, a vote of 
4-3 passes the motion. A vote of 3-3 with one abstention means the 
motion fails. If one member is absent and the vote is 3-3, the motion 
still fails.

All motions require a simple majority, but there are a few exceptions. 
The exceptions come up when the body is taking an action which 
effectively cuts off the ability of a minority of the body to take an 
action or discuss an item. These extraordinary motions require a 
two-thirds majority (a super majority) to pass:

Motion to limit debate. Whether a member says, “I move the 
previous question,” or “I move the question,” or “I call the question,” 
or “I move to limit debate,” it all amounts to an attempt to cut off the 
ability of the minority to discuss an item, and it requires a two-thirds 
vote to pass.

ITEM I-1 
ATTACHMENT 2



6

Now, exactly how does a member cast an “abstention” vote? 
Any time a member votes “abstain” or says, “I abstain,” that is an 
abstention. However, if a member votes “present” that is also treated 
as an abstention (the member is essentially saying, “Count me for 
purposes of a quorum, but my vote on the issue is abstain.”) In fact, 
any manifestation of intention not to vote either “yes” or “no” on 
the pending motion may be treated by the chair as an abstention. If 
written ballots are cast, a blank or unreadable ballot is counted as an 
abstention as well. 

Can a member vote “absent” or “count me as absent?” Interesting 
question. The ruling on this is up to the chair. The better approach is 
for the chair to count this as if the member had left his/her chair and 
is actually “absent.” That, of course, affects the quorum. However, the 
chair may also treat this as a vote to abstain, particularly if the person 
does not actually leave the dais. 

The Motion to Reconsider
There is a special and unique motion that requires a bit of 
explanation all by itself; the motion to reconsider. A tenet of 
parliamentary procedure is finality. After vigorous discussion, debate 
and a vote, there must be some closure to the issue. And so, after a 
vote is taken, the matter is deemed closed, subject only to reopening 
if a proper motion to consider is made and passed.

A motion to reconsider requires a majority vote to pass like other 
garden-variety motions, but there are two special rules that apply 
only to the motion to reconsider. 

First, is the matter of timing. A motion to reconsider must be made 
at the meeting where the item was first voted upon. A motion to 
reconsider made at a later time is untimely. (The body, however, can 
always vote to suspend the rules and, by a two-thirds majority, allow 
a motion to reconsider to be made at another time.)

Second, a motion to reconsider may be made only by certain 
members of the body. Accordingly, a motion to reconsider may be 
made only by a member who voted in the majority on the original 
motion. If such a member has a change of heart, he or she may 
make the motion to reconsider (any other member of the body 
— including a member who voted in the minority on the original 
motion — may second the motion). If a member who voted in the 
minority seeks to make the motion to reconsider, it must be ruled 
out of order. The purpose of this rule is finality. If a member of 
minority could make a motion to reconsider, then the item could be 
brought back to the body again and again, which would defeat the 
purpose of finality. 

If the motion to reconsider passes, then the original matter is back 
before the body, and a new original motion is in order. The matter may 
be discussed and debated as if it were on the floor for the first time. 

California, as another example, resolutions or orders for the payment of 
money and all ordinances require a recorded vote of the total members 
of the city council. (California Government Code Section 36936.) Cities 
with charters may prescribe their own vote requirements. Local elected 
officials are always well-advised to consult with their local agency 
counsel on how state law may affect the vote count.

After consulting state statutes, step number two is to check the rules 
of the body. If the rules of the body say that you count votes of “those 
present” then you treat abstentions one way. However, if the rules of 
the body say that you count the votes of those “present and voting,” 
then you treat abstentions a different way. And if the rules of the 
body are silent on the subject, then the general rule of thumb (and 
default rule) is that you count all votes that are “present and voting.” 

Accordingly, under the “present and voting” system, you would NOT 
count abstention votes on the motion. Members who abstain are 
counted for purposes of determining quorum (they are “present”), 
but you treat the abstention votes on the motion as if they did not 
exist (they are not “voting”). On the other hand, if the rules of the 
body specifically say that you count votes of those “present” then you 
DO count abstention votes both in establishing the quorum and on 
the motion. In this event, the abstention votes act just like “no” votes.

How does this work in practice?  
Here are a few examples.

Assume that a five-member city council is voting on a motion that 
requires a simple majority vote to pass, and assume further that the 
body has no specific rule on counting votes. Accordingly, the default 
rule kicks in and we count all votes of members that are “present and 
voting.” If the vote on the motion is 3-2, the motion passes. If the 
motion is 2-2 with one abstention, the motion fails. 

Assume a five-member city council voting on a motion that requires 
a two-thirds majority vote to pass, and further assume that the body 
has no specific rule on counting votes. Again, the default rule applies. 
If the vote is 3-2, the motion fails for lack of a two-thirds majority. If 
the vote is 4-1, the motion passes with a clear two-thirds majority. A 
vote of three “yes,” one “no” and one “abstain” also results in passage 
of the motion. Once again, the abstention is counted only for the 
purpose of determining quorum, but on the actual vote on the 
motion, it is as if the abstention vote never existed — so an effective 
3-1 vote is clearly a two-thirds majority vote. 

Now, change the scenario slightly. Assume the same five-member 
city council voting on a motion that requires a two-thirds majority 
vote to pass, but now assume that the body DOES have a specific rule 
requiring a two-thirds vote of members “present.” Under this specific 
rule, we must count the members present not only for quorum but 
also for the motion. In this scenario, any abstention has the same 
force and effect as if it were a “no” vote. Accordingly, if the votes were 
three “yes,” one “no” and one “abstain,” then the motion fails. The 
abstention in this case is treated like a “no” vote and effective vote of 
3-2 is not enough to pass two-thirds majority muster. 

ITEM I-1 
ATTACHMENT 2



7

Appeal. If the chair makes a ruling that a member of the body 
disagrees with, that member may appeal the ruling of the chair. If the 
motion is seconded, and after debate, if it passes by a simple majority 
vote, then the ruling of the chair is deemed reversed.

Call for orders of the day. This is simply another way of saying, 
“return to the agenda.” If a member believes that the body has drifted 
from the agreed-upon agenda, such a call may be made. It does not 
require a vote, and when the chair discovers that the agenda has 
not been followed, the chair simply reminds the body to return to 
the agenda item properly before them. If the chair fails to do so, the 
chair’s determination may be appealed.

Withdraw a motion. During debate and discussion of a motion, 
the maker of the motion on the floor, at any time, may interrupt a 
speaker to withdraw his or her motion from the floor. The motion 
is immediately deemed withdrawn, although the chair may ask the 
person who seconded the motion if he or she wishes to make the 
motion, and any other member may make the motion if properly 
recognized.

Special Notes About Public Input
The rules outlined above will help make meetings very public-
friendly. But in addition, and particularly for the chair, it is wise to 
remember three special rules that apply to each agenda item:

Rule One: Tell the public what the body will be doing.

Rule Two: Keep the public informed while the body is doing it.

Rule Three: When the body has acted, tell the public what the 
body did.

Courtesy and Decorum
The rules of order are meant to create an atmosphere where the 
members of the body and the members of the public can attend to 
business efficiently, fairly and with full participation. At the same 
time, it is up to the chair and the members of the body to maintain 
common courtesy and decorum. Unless the setting is very informal, 
it is always best for only one person at a time to have the floor, and 
it is always best for every speaker to be first recognized by the chair 
before proceeding to speak.

The chair should always ensure that debate and discussion of an 
agenda item focuses on the item and the policy in question, not the 
personalities of the members of the body. Debate on policy is healthy, 
debate on personalities is not. The chair has the right to cut off 
discussion that is too personal, is too loud, or is too crude.

Debate and discussion should be focused, but free and open. In the 
interest of time, the chair may, however, limit the time allotted to 
speakers, including members of the body.

Can a member of the body interrupt the speaker? The general rule is 
“no.” There are, however, exceptions. A speaker may be interrupted 
for the following reasons:

Privilege. The proper interruption would be, “point of privilege.” 
The chair would then ask the interrupter to “state your point.” 
Appropriate points of privilege relate to anything that would 
interfere with the normal comfort of the meeting. For example, the 
room may be too hot or too cold, or a blowing fan might interfere 
with a person’s ability to hear.

Order. The proper interruption would be, “point of order.” Again, 
the chair would ask the interrupter to “state your point.” Appropriate 
points of order relate to anything that would not be considered 
appropriate conduct of the meeting. For example, if the chair moved 
on to a vote on a motion that permits debate without allowing that 
discussion or debate.

ITEM I-1 
ATTACHMENT 2



1400 K Street, Sacramento, CA 95814
(916) 658-8200   |   Fax (916) 658-8240

www.cacities.org

To order additional copies of this publication, call (916) 658-8200.

$10 

© 2011 League of California Cities. All rights reserved.

 Printed on recycled paper.

ITEM I-1 
ATTACHMENT 2



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM  
Department: Rent Program Department Head: Nicolas Traylor Phone: 620-6564 
   
Meeting Date: July 17, 2019 Final Decision Date Deadline:  July 17, 2019 

 
STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE:  On June 19, 2019, the Rent Board directed staff members to amend Regulation 842 to 
include a specific time whereby a request for reconsideration must be heard. Consistent with Rent Board direction, staff 
members are proposing amendments to Regulation 842 that would describe when the Executive Director or assigned 
Designee may treat an appeal as a request for reconsideration, and the time in which such a request must be heard. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             
INDICATE APPROPRIATE BODY  

 City Council  Redevelopment 
Agency 

 Housing Authority  Surplus Property 
Authority 

 Joint Powers 
Financing Authority 

 Finance 
Standing 
Committee 

 Public Safety Public 
Services Standing 
Committee 

 Local Reuse Authority Other: Rent Board 

    
 

  

ITEM   

 Presentation/Proclamation/Commendation (3-Minute Time Limit) 

 Public Hearing    Regulation    Other:  
 Contract/Agreement   Rent Board As Whole 
 Grant Application/Acceptance  Claims Filed Against City of Richmond     

 Resolution     Video/PowerPoint Presentation (contact KCRT @ 620.6759)  

 
rev 2/06  P:\City_Managers\Agenda Rqst  Formrev.doc 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: AMEND Regulation 842 to do either of the following:  
 
Option A:  Within 15 business days after the date to file an appeal has expired, allow the Executive Director or assigned 
Designee to treat appeals as requests for reconsideration, where there is a clear misapplication of the law, the law has 
changed, there is a problem with the Record, or any other matter where reconsideration would be appropriate considering 
administrative efficacy. This amendment would also clarify that the Executive Director or assigned Designee is the individual 
who grants a request for reconsideration and not the Hearing Examiner. 
 
Option B: Amend Regulation 842 to allow the Executive Director or assigned Designee to send a matter back to the Hearing 
Examiner within a reasonable period of time without the requirement of a Rent Board Order, where the issue involves a 
clear misapplication of the law, a problem with the Record, or a change in the law or any other matter appropriate for 
reconsideration. In such an event, the Executive Director or assigned Designee must submit a written Order of 
Reconsideration with specific instructions identifying the good cause underlying the granting of reconsideration and the 
parameters of the hearing on reconsideration – Rent Program (Nicolas Traylor/Charles Oshinuga 620-6564).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 

       J-1. 



This page intentionally left blank 



 

440 Civic Center Plaza, Richmond, CA 94804-1630 
Telephone: (510) 234-RENT (7368)   Fax: (510) 307-8149   www.richmondrent.org 

CITY OF RICHMOND RENT PROGRAM 

ffffff 
 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: July 17, 2019 
 
TO: Members of the Rent Board 
 
FROM: Nicolas Traylor, Executive Director 
 Charles Oshinuga, Staff Attorney 
   
SUBJECT: PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REGULATION 842 CONCERNING 

REQUESTS FOR RECONSIDERATION  
 
STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE: 
 
On June 19, 2019, the Rent Board directed staff members to amend Regulation 842 to 
include a specific time whereby a request for reconsideration must be heard. Consistent 
with Rent Board direction, staff members are proposing amendments to Regulation 842 
that would describe when the Executive Director or assigned Designee may treat an 
appeal as a request for reconsideration, and the time in which such a request must be 
heard.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
AMEND Regulation 842 to do either of the following: 
 
Option A:  Within 15 business days after the date to file an appeal has expired, allow the 
Executive Director or assigned Designee to treat appeals as requests for 
reconsideration, where there is a clear misapplication of the law, the law has changed, 
there is a problem with the Record, or any other matter where reconsideration would be 
appropriate considering administrative efficacy. This amendment would also clarify that 
the Executive Director or assigned Designee is the individual who grants a request for 
reconsideration and not the Hearing Examiner. 
 
Option B: Amend Regulation 842 to allow the Executive Director or assigned Designee 
to send a matter back to the Hearing Examiner within a reasonable period of time 
without the requirement of a Rent Board Order, where the issue involves a clear 
misapplication of the law, a problem with the Record, or a change in the law or any 
other matter appropriate for reconsideration. In such an event, the Executive Director or 
assigned Designee must submit a written Order of Reconsideration with specific 
instructions identifying the good cause underlying the granting of reconsideration and 

  

AGENDA REPORT 



ITEM J-1 

Page 2 of 4 
July 17, 2019 
 

the parameters of the hearing on reconsideration– Rent Program (Nicolas 
Traylor/Charles Oshinuga 620-6564).  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no fiscal impact related to this item. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Background 
 
On January 24, 2018, the Rent Board adopted Chapter 8 of the Regulations, titled 
“Petition Process and Hearing Procedures.” This Chapter establishes substantive and 
procedural rules whereby a Landlord or Tenant may file a petition on various claims. 
After adopting these series of Regulations in January 2018, staff members worked 
vigorously to acquire adequate staffing and institutional knowledge to properly 
implement the provisions of Chapter 8 of the Regulations. In August 2018, the Rent 
Program officially began processing petitions for hearings. To date, the Rent Program 
has processed and heard 63 Landlord or Tenant petitions and seven appeals.  
 
When a party appeals a matter, it may take as much as several months before the 
matter is brought before the Rent Board. As it stands now, where staff members identify 
a problem with the Record in a matter on appeal, staff members cannot remedy the 
error administratively, but rather must send the matter to the Rent Board for an Order of 
Remand to address the issue of the Record. The result is that the parties may end up 
waiting several months before the issue can be resolved by the Rent Board, whereas 
staff members could have administratively remedied the issue within thirty days. To 
address this issue, on June 19, 2019, staff members brought the matter before the 
Board and recommended the Board amend Regulation 842 to allow the Executive 
Director or assigned Designee to send a matter back to the Hearing Examiner without 
the requirement of a Rent Board Order, where the issue involves a clear misapplication 
of the law, a problem with the Record, or a change in the law or any other matter 
appropriate for reconsideration. The proposed amendments also added a requirement 
that when the Executive Director or their Designee treats and/or grants a request for 
reconsideration, it must be followed by a written Order of Reconsideration. The Board 
agreed with the amendments but decided to postpone the adoption of said amendments 
and directed staff members to include language that required any determination of 
reconsideration be made within 15 days after the time to appeal has expired.  
 
General Overview of Appeals Processing and Proposed Reconsideration Process 
 
Pursuant to the Board’s adopted regulations, any party to a petition may file an appeal 
with the Rent Board within thirty days (thirty-five days if mailed) of the issuance of the 
Hearing Examiner’s decision. Appeals are both filed with and processed by the Board 
Clerk. After the 35th day has elapsed, the Board Clerk provides the appeal to the Staff 
Attorney. The Staff Attorney begins reviewing the file by reading the information 



ITEM J-1 

Page 3 of 4 
July 17, 2019 
 

contained in the Rent Program’s appeal forms, reviewing all the documentary evidence 
contained in the Record, listening to all of the oral testimony contained in the audio 
recording of the hearing, and researching applicable law that will guide the analysis on 
the issues presented. The Staff Attorney may also consult with attorneys in neighboring 
jurisdictions if the issues presented are nuanced. As such, the amount of time required 
for the Staff Attorney to conduct such a review varies depending on the issues 
presented (a single issue on security deposit will likely take less time than one of 
Maintenance of Net Operating Income). After the review is complete, the Staff Attorney 
writes a recommendation to the Rent Board and all the parties. This process is then 
repeated for the next appeal file in the queue.  
 
During the review process, the Staff Attorney may find issues warranting 
reconsideration by the Hearing Examiner. For instance, the Record may be incomplete 
due to an error in the audio recording of the hearing, or there may exist a clear 
misapplication of the law. Despite the parties not having requested reconsideration, the 
Staff Attorney may forward the file to the Executive Director or their Designee with a 
summary of the issues that may warrant treating that specific appeal as a request for 
reconsideration. In those instances, the Executive Director or their Designee reviews 
the various issues and decides whether there is good cause to treat the issue as a basis 
for granting reconsideration. Where reconsideration is granted, the Executive Director or 
their Designee issues a written Order to all parties explaining the basis of 
reconsideration, the scope of the issues to be reconsidered, and a modified schedule 
for hearing, if necessary.  
 
Given the above process, a strict time limit to discover issues warranting 
reconsideration may be unworkable. For instance, a change in the law that impacts the 
matter may occur well after the appeal has been filed and reviewed. In such a 
circumstance, parties would have to wait the additional time to appear before the Rent 
Board to have their matter remanded to the Hearing Examiner, as the Rent Program 
would not have the ability to quickly order the matter be reconsidered due to a change 
in the law. Additionally, a strict time limit could remove a right of a party due to the staff 
member’s inaction. For instance, if a party has specifically requested for reconsideration 
and staff does not reach the issue within the specified time, the consequence would be 
that the matter not be reconsidered but rather placed on the track of an appeal.  
 
Proposed Amendments to Regulation 842 to Permit the Executive Director or Assigned 
Designee to Treat an Appeal as a Request for Reconsideration  
 
To address the aforementioned potential issues and remain consistent with Board 
direction, staff members have prepared two options for the Board’s consideration: 
 
Option A: Amend Regulation 842 to allow the Executive Director or assigned Designee, 
within 15 days after the date to file an appeal has expired, to send a matter back to the 
Hearing Examiner without the requirement of a Rent Board Order, where the issue 
involves a clear misapplication of the law, a problem with the Record, or a change in the 
law or any other matter appropriate for reconsideration. In such an event, the Executive 



ITEM J-1 

Page 4 of 4 
July 17, 2019 
 

Director or assigned designee must submit a written Order of Reconsideration with 
specific instructions identifying the good cause underlying the granting of 
reconsideration, the parameters of the hearing on reconsideration, and require the 
hearing be rescheduled within 60 days.   
  
Option B: Amend Regulation 842 to allow the Executive Director or assigned Designee 
to send a matter back to the Hearing Examiner within a reasonable period of time 
without the requirement of a Rent Board Order, where the issue involves a clear 
misapplication of the law, a problem with the Record, or a change in the law or any 
other matter appropriate for reconsideration. In such an event, the Executive Director or 
assigned Designee must submit a written Order of Reconsideration with specific 
instructions identifying the good cause underlying the granting of reconsideration and 
the parameters of the hearing on reconsideration 
 
Conclusion  
 
Staff members recommend the Rent Board adopt one of the two options presented in 
this report.  
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
   
Attachment 1 – Option A: Regulation 842 of the Rent Board Regulations (Redline 

Version) 
   
Attachment 2 – Option A: Regulation 842 of the Rent Board Regulations (Clean 

Version) 
 
Attachment 3 – Option B: Regulation 842 of the Rent Board Regulations (Redline 

Version) 
   
Attachment 4 – Option B: Regulation 842 of the Rent Board Regulations (Clean 

Version) 
   
 



ITEM J-1 
ATTACHMENT 1  

OPTION A 
 
842. Appeal Process  

A. Any appeal shall be filed on a form provided by the Board no later than thirty (30) 
calendar days after receipt of the notice of the hearing examiner's decision. A party is 
presumed to receive the decision five (5) business days after it is mailed. The appeal must 
contain a statement of the specific grounds on which the appeal is based. The Board will 
not consider an appeal that fails to state any facts or arguments in support of the grounds 
alleged in the appeal. Except as provided in Section 842(E), no other documents in 
support of the appeal will be accepted after the appeal deadline unless specifically 
requested by the Board. The appeal shall be sent to the Board and opposing parties and 
their representative. Additionally, appellants shall send a copy of the appeal to the 
hearing examiner whose decision is being appealed. The Board or staff may order that 
appeals relating to the same building or property, or different properties of the same 
Landlord, be consolidated. The opposing party shall file any response to the appeal 
within fifteen (15) calendar days from the date the appeal is filed.  
 

B. The hearing examiner's decision shall be stayed pending appeal. In its decision, the Board 
shall order the appropriate party to make retroactive payments over a reasonably 
appropriate period to restore the parties to the positions they would have occupied had the 
hearing examiner's decision been the same as that of the Board or had not been stayed.  
 

C. At least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the date set for Board action on the appeal, a 
Board Staff report shall be prepared recommending that the decision of the hearing 
examiner be affirmed, modified, reversed or remanded to the hearing examiner for further 
hearing. Board Staff may supplement the record by including matters of which the Board 
may take official notice, provided that the parties are notified of such matters at least 
fourteen (14) days prior to the date set for Board action. Any objection to a staff request 
for official notice of such matters shall be filed no later than seven (7) calendar days prior 
to the date set for Board action. 
  

D. At least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the date set for Board action, all parties shall 
be notified by mail of the date, time and place set for Board action on the appeal. Copies 
of the Board Staff recommendation shall be mailed to all parties and their representatives 
at least 14 days prior to the Board action. Copies of the official record and the staff 
recommendation shall be available for public review at the Board office at least fourteen 
(14) days prior to the date set for Board action. Parties may submit written comments to 
the Board up to seven (7) days prior to the Board action. 
  

E. At the Board meeting at which action on the appeal is scheduled, each party or the party’s 
representative will be allowed seven (7) minutes to address the Board at the beginning of 
the hearing in the following order: appellant for five (5) minutes, respondent for seven (7) 
minutes, appellant for two (2) minutes. For any party addressing the Board who requires 
translation the allowable times shall be doubled. The Board has the discretion to allow 



ITEM J-1 
ATTACHMENT 1  

OPTION A 
 

more time.  
 

F. Unless the Board determines that a de novo hearing is required, the Board's decision will 
be based exclusively on the record before the hearing examiner. Parties shall be 
instructed not to discuss or comment upon factual matters or evidence that were not 
presented to the hearing examiner or officially noticed. Parties may discuss or comment 
upon the legal matters in question and any other pertinent issues raised by the appeal. The 
Board shall disregard any discussion or comment regarding factual matters that were not 
in the record before the hearing examiner or officially noticed. The vote of three (3) 
Board members is required to affirm, modify, remand or reverse the decision of the 
hearing examiner. 
  

G. The Board's decision to affirm, modify, remand or reverse the decision of the hearing 
examiner shall be supported by written findings of fact and conclusions of law. When the 
Board votes to adopt the staff recommendation unchanged, the parties to the appeal will 
be notified only of the Board's decision. When the Board does not adopt the staff 
recommendation as written, a written decision of the Board shall be mailed to the parties 
or their representative of record.  

H. Continuances of dates set for Board action on appeals shall be granted by a majority of 
the Board or by the Executive Director only for good cause shown. A written request and 
the reasons for it must be received by the Board at least two (2) business days prior to the 
scheduled hearing, unless good cause is shown for later request. The written request must 
contain the reasons for the continuance, an explanation of what efforts were made to 
ascertain the position of the other parties regarding the request for a continuance, and 
mutually acceptable alternative dates. Copies of this written request must be sent 
immediately to all other parties and proof of service must accompany the written request 
filed with the Board.  

I. Reconsideration.  

1) At the discretion of the Executive Director or their designee, an appeal may be treated as a 
request for reconsideration and referred back to the Hhearing Eexaminer for such 
reconsideration only if it is claimed by the appellant that: 
a) There was good cause for a failure to respond to a petition; or  
b) There was good cause for a failure to appear at a settlement conference or hearing; or  
c) The appellant wishes to present relevant evidence that could not, with reasonable 

diligence, have been discovered and produced at the hearing.  
c)d) The decision resulted from a clearly inaccurate application of the law; hearing 

staff members discovered a problem with the record; the underlying legal standard upon 
which the decision is based changed before final disposition of the case, includsing 
matters subject to a pending petition for writ of administrative mandamus; or any other 
reason the case should be remanded for reconsideration for administrative efficiency.  
 



ITEM J-1 
ATTACHMENT 1  

OPTION A 
 
2) In the event that the Executive Director or their Ddesignee finds good cause exists to treat the 

aAppeal as a request for reconsideration, the Executive Director or their Ddesignee shall, 
within 15 days from the day to file an appeal has expired, issue an Order of Reconsideration, 
which shall describe the basis of granting reconsideration, the scope of issues to be 
reconsidered by the Hearing Examiner, and modified procedures, if any, of the hearing 
process to expedite the matter for a hearing on reconsidered issues. The Rent Program shall 
send the Order of Reconsideration to  reconsideration under subsection (K) (l) is ordered, the 
all parties will be so notified within 15 days of the filing of the appeal and, schedule a 
hearing consistent with the Order of Reconsideration within 60 days from the day the Order 
of Reconsideration was issued.  period.a hearing on the reconsidered issues. thereafter, all 
correspondence shall be directed to the hearing examiner. The threshold issue on 
reconsideration shall be whether a preponderance of the evidence supports the assertion that 
good cause existed for the failure to respond to a petition or to appear at a hearing or that  the 
newly offered evidence could not, with reasonable diligence, have been discovered and 
produced at the hearing. Only if good cause for the failure is found may the hearing examiner 
reconsider the merits of the petition.  

 



This page intentionally left blank 



ITEM J-1 
ATTACHMENT 2  

OPTION A 
 
842. Appeal Process  

A. Any appeal shall be filed on a form provided by the Board no later than thirty (30) 
calendar days after receipt of the notice of the hearing examiner's decision. A party is 
presumed to receive the decision five (5) business days after it is mailed. The appeal must 
contain a statement of the specific grounds on which the appeal is based. The Board will 
not consider an appeal that fails to state any facts or arguments in support of the grounds 
alleged in the appeal. Except as provided in Section 842(E), no other documents in 
support of the appeal will be accepted after the appeal deadline unless specifically 
requested by the Board. The appeal shall be sent to the Board and opposing parties and 
their representative. Additionally, appellants shall send a copy of the appeal to the 
hearing examiner whose decision is being appealed. The Board or staff may order that 
appeals relating to the same building or property, or different properties of the same 
Landlord, be consolidated. The opposing party shall file any response to the appeal 
within fifteen (15) calendar days from the date the appeal is filed.  
 

B. The hearing examiner's decision shall be stayed pending appeal. In its decision, the Board 
shall order the appropriate party to make retroactive payments over a reasonably 
appropriate period to restore the parties to the positions they would have occupied had the 
hearing examiner's decision been the same as that of the Board or had not been stayed.  
 

C. At least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the date set for Board action on the appeal, a 
Board Staff report shall be prepared recommending that the decision of the hearing 
examiner be affirmed, modified, reversed or remanded to the hearing examiner for further 
hearing. Board Staff may supplement the record by including matters of which the Board 
may take official notice, provided that the parties are notified of such matters at least 
fourteen (14) days prior to the date set for Board action. Any objection to a staff request 
for official notice of such matters shall be filed no later than seven (7) calendar days prior 
to the date set for Board action. 
  

D. At least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the date set for Board action, all parties shall 
be notified by mail of the date, time and place set for Board action on the appeal. Copies 
of the Board Staff recommendation shall be mailed to all parties and their representatives 
at least 14 days prior to the Board action. Copies of the official record and the staff 
recommendation shall be available for public review at the Board office at least fourteen 
(14) days prior to the date set for Board action. Parties may submit written comments to 
the Board up to seven (7) days prior to the Board action. 
  

E. At the Board meeting at which action on the appeal is scheduled, each party or the party’s 
representative will be allowed seven (7) minutes to address the Board at the beginning of 
the hearing in the following order: appellant for five (5) minutes, respondent for seven (7) 
minutes, appellant for two (2) minutes. For any party addressing the Board who requires 
translation the allowable times shall be doubled. The Board has the discretion to allow 



ITEM J-1 
ATTACHMENT 2  

OPTION A 
 

more time.  
 

F. Unless the Board determines that a de novo hearing is required, the Board's decision will 
be based exclusively on the record before the hearing examiner. Parties shall be 
instructed not to discuss or comment upon factual matters or evidence that were not 
presented to the hearing examiner or officially noticed. Parties may discuss or comment 
upon the legal matters in question and any other pertinent issues raised by the appeal. The 
Board shall disregard any discussion or comment regarding factual matters that were not 
in the record before the hearing examiner or officially noticed. The vote of three (3) 
Board members is required to affirm, modify, remand or reverse the decision of the 
hearing examiner. 
  

G. The Board's decision to affirm, modify, remand or reverse the decision of the hearing 
examiner shall be supported by written findings of fact and conclusions of law. When the 
Board votes to adopt the staff recommendation unchanged, the parties to the appeal will 
be notified only of the Board's decision. When the Board does not adopt the staff 
recommendation as written, a written decision of the Board shall be mailed to the parties 
or their representative of record.  

H. Continuances of dates set for Board action on appeals shall be granted by a majority of 
the Board or by the Executive Director only for good cause shown. A written request and 
the reasons for it must be received by the Board at least two (2) business days prior to the 
scheduled hearing, unless good cause is shown for later request. The written request must 
contain the reasons for the continuance, an explanation of what efforts were made to 
ascertain the position of the other parties regarding the request for a continuance, and 
mutually acceptable alternative dates. Copies of this written request must be sent 
immediately to all other parties and proof of service must accompany the written request 
filed with the Board.  

I. Reconsideration.  

1) At the discretion of the Executive Director or their designee, an appeal may be treated as a 
request for reconsideration and referred back to the Hearing Examiner for such 
reconsideration only if it is claimed by the appellant that: 
a) There was good cause for a failure to respond to a petition; or  
b) There was good cause for a failure to appear at a settlement conference or hearing; or  
c) The appellant wishes to present relevant evidence that could not, with reasonable 

diligence, have been discovered and produced at the hearing.  
d) The decision resulted from a clearly inaccurate application of the law; staff members 

discovered a problem with the record; the underlying legal standard upon which the 
decision is based changed before final disposition of the case, including matters subject to 
a pending petition for writ of administrative mandamus; or any other reason the case 
should be remanded for reconsideration for administrative efficiency.  
 



ITEM J-1 
ATTACHMENT 2  

OPTION A 
 
2) In the event that the Executive Director or their Designee finds good cause exists to treat the 

appeal as a request for reconsideration, the Executive Director or their Designee shall, within 
15 days from the day to file an appeal has expired, issue an Order of Reconsideration, which 
shall describe the basis of granting reconsideration, the scope of issues to be reconsidered by 
the Hearing Examiner, and modified procedures, if any, of the hearing process to expedite 
the matter for a hearing on reconsidered issues. The Rent Program shall send the Order of 
Reconsideration to all parties and, schedule a hearing consistent with the Order of 
Reconsideration within 60 days from the day the Order of Reconsideration was issued.  

 



This page intentionally left blank 



ITEM J-1 
ATTACHMENT 3 

OPTION B 
 
842. Appeal Process  

A. Any appeal shall be filed on a form provided by the Board no later than thirty (30) 
calendar days after receipt of the notice of the hearing examiner's decision. A party is 
presumed to receive the decision five (5) business days after it is mailed. The appeal must 
contain a statement of the specific grounds on which the appeal is based. The Board will 
not consider an appeal that fails to state any facts or arguments in support of the grounds 
alleged in the appeal. Except as provided in Section 842(E), no other documents in 
support of the appeal will be accepted after the appeal deadline unless specifically 
requested by the Board. The appeal shall be sent to the Board and opposing parties and 
their representative. Additionally, appellants shall send a copy of the appeal to the 
hearing examiner whose decision is being appealed. The Board or staff may order that 
appeals relating to the same building or property, or different properties of the same 
Landlord, be consolidated. The opposing party shall file any response to the appeal 
within fifteen (15) calendar days from the date the appeal is filed.  
 

B. The hearing examiner's decision shall be stayed pending appeal. In its decision, the Board 
shall order the appropriate party to make retroactive payments over a reasonably 
appropriate period to restore the parties to the positions they would have occupied had the 
hearing examiner's decision been the same as that of the Board or had not been stayed.  
 

C. At least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the date set for Board action on the appeal, a 
Board Staff report shall be prepared recommending that the decision of the hearing 
examiner be affirmed, modified, reversed or remanded to the hearing examiner for further 
hearing. Board Staff may supplement the record by including matters of which the Board 
may take official notice, provided that the parties are notified of such matters at least 
fourteen (14) days prior to the date set for Board action. Any objection to a staff request 
for official notice of such matters shall be filed no later than seven (7) calendar days prior 
to the date set for Board action. 
  

D. At least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the date set for Board action, all parties shall 
be notified by mail of the date, time and place set for Board action on the appeal. Copies 
of the Board Staff recommendation shall be mailed to all parties and their representatives 
at least 14 days prior to the Board action. Copies of the official record and the staff 
recommendation shall be available for public review at the Board office at least fourteen 
(14) days prior to the date set for Board action. Parties may submit written comments to 
the Board up to seven (7) days prior to the Board action. 
  

E. At the Board meeting at which action on the appeal is scheduled, each party or the party’s 
representative will be allowed seven (7) minutes to address the Board at the beginning of 
the hearing in the following order: appellant for five (5) minutes, respondent for seven (7) 
minutes, appellant for two (2) minutes. For any party addressing the Board who requires 
translation the allowable times shall be doubled. The Board has the discretion to allow 



ITEM J-1 
ATTACHMENT 3 

OPTION B 
 

more time.  
 

F. Unless the Board determines that a de novo hearing is required, the Board's decision will 
be based exclusively on the record before the hearing examiner. Parties shall be 
instructed not to discuss or comment upon factual matters or evidence that were not 
presented to the hearing examiner or officially noticed. Parties may discuss or comment 
upon the legal matters in question and any other pertinent issues raised by the appeal. The 
Board shall disregard any discussion or comment regarding factual matters that were not 
in the record before the hearing examiner or officially noticed. The vote of three (3) 
Board members is required to affirm, modify, remand or reverse the decision of the 
hearing examiner. 
  

G. The Board's decision to affirm, modify, remand or reverse the decision of the hearing 
examiner shall be supported by written findings of fact and conclusions of law. When the 
Board votes to adopt the staff recommendation unchanged, the parties to the appeal will 
be notified only of the Board's decision. When the Board does not adopt the staff 
recommendation as written, a written decision of the Board shall be mailed to the parties 
or their representative of record.  

H. Continuances of dates set for Board action on appeals shall be granted by a majority of 
the Board or by the Executive Director only for good cause shown. A written request and 
the reasons for it must be received by the Board at least two (2) business days prior to the 
scheduled hearing, unless good cause is shown for later request. The written request must 
contain the reasons for the continuance, an explanation of what efforts were made to 
ascertain the position of the other parties regarding the request for a continuance, and 
mutually acceptable alternative dates. Copies of this written request must be sent 
immediately to all other parties and proof of service must accompany the written request 
filed with the Board.  

I. Reconsideration.  

1) At the discretion of the Executive Director or their designee, an appeal may be treated as a 
request for reconsideration and referred back to the Hhearing Eexaminer for such 
reconsideration only if it is claimed by the appellant that: 
a) There was good cause for a failure to respond to a petition; or  
b) There was good cause for a failure to appear at a settlement conference or hearing; or  
c) The appellant wishes to present relevant evidence that could not, with reasonable 

diligence, have been discovered and produced at the hearing.  
c)d) The decision resulted from a clearly inaccurate application of the law; hearing 

staff members discovered a problem with the record; the underlying legal standard upon 
which the decision is based changed before final disposition of the case, includsing 
matters subject to a pending petition for writ of administrative mandamus; or any other 
reason the case should be remanded for reconsideration for administrative efficiency.  
 



ITEM J-1 
ATTACHMENT 3 

OPTION B 
 
2) In the event that the Executive Director or their Ddesignee finds good cause exists to treat the 

aAppeal as a request for reconsideration, the Executive Director or their Ddesignee shall, 
within a reasonable time period, issue an Order of Reconsideration, which shall describe the 
basis of granting reconsideration, the scope of issues to be reconsidered by the Hearing 
Examiner, and modified procedures, if any, of the hearing process to expedite the matter for a 
hearing on reconsidered issues. The Rent Program shall send the Order of Reconsideration to  
reconsideration under subsection (K) (l) is ordered, the all parties will be so notified within 
15 days of the filing of the appeal and schedule a hearing consistent with the Order of 
Reconsideration, within a reasonable time period., schedule a hearing on the reconsidered 
issues. thereafter, all correspondence shall be directed to the hearing examiner. The threshold 
issue on reconsideration shall be whether a preponderance of the evidence supports the 
assertion that good cause existed for the failure to respond to a petition or to appear at a 
hearing or that  the newly offered evidence could not, with reasonable diligence, have been 
discovered and produced at the hearing. Only if good cause for the failure is found may the 
hearing examiner reconsider the merits of the petition.  

 



This page intentionally left blank 



ITEM J-1 
ATTACHMENT 4 

OPTION B 
 
842. Appeal Process  

A. Any appeal shall be filed on a form provided by the Board no later than thirty (30) 
calendar days after receipt of the notice of the hearing examiner's decision. A party is 
presumed to receive the decision five (5) business days after it is mailed. The appeal must 
contain a statement of the specific grounds on which the appeal is based. The Board will 
not consider an appeal that fails to state any facts or arguments in support of the grounds 
alleged in the appeal. Except as provided in Section 842(E), no other documents in 
support of the appeal will be accepted after the appeal deadline unless specifically 
requested by the Board. The appeal shall be sent to the Board and opposing parties and 
their representative. Additionally, appellants shall send a copy of the appeal to the 
hearing examiner whose decision is being appealed. The Board or staff may order that 
appeals relating to the same building or property, or different properties of the same 
Landlord, be consolidated. The opposing party shall file any response to the appeal 
within fifteen (15) calendar days from the date the appeal is filed.  
 

B. The hearing examiner's decision shall be stayed pending appeal. In its decision, the Board 
shall order the appropriate party to make retroactive payments over a reasonably 
appropriate period to restore the parties to the positions they would have occupied had the 
hearing examiner's decision been the same as that of the Board or had not been stayed.  
 

C. At least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the date set for Board action on the appeal, a 
Board Staff report shall be prepared recommending that the decision of the hearing 
examiner be affirmed, modified, reversed or remanded to the hearing examiner for further 
hearing. Board Staff may supplement the record by including matters of which the Board 
may take official notice, provided that the parties are notified of such matters at least 
fourteen (14) days prior to the date set for Board action. Any objection to a staff request 
for official notice of such matters shall be filed no later than seven (7) calendar days prior 
to the date set for Board action. 
  

D. At least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the date set for Board action, all parties shall 
be notified by mail of the date, time and place set for Board action on the appeal. Copies 
of the Board Staff recommendation shall be mailed to all parties and their representatives 
at least 14 days prior to the Board action. Copies of the official record and the staff 
recommendation shall be available for public review at the Board office at least fourteen 
(14) days prior to the date set for Board action. Parties may submit written comments to 
the Board up to seven (7) days prior to the Board action. 
  

E. At the Board meeting at which action on the appeal is scheduled, each party or the party’s 
representative will be allowed seven (7) minutes to address the Board at the beginning of 
the hearing in the following order: appellant for five (5) minutes, respondent for seven (7) 
minutes, appellant for two (2) minutes. For any party addressing the Board who requires 
translation the allowable times shall be doubled. The Board has the discretion to allow 



ITEM J-1 
ATTACHMENT 4 

OPTION B 
 

more time.  
 

F. Unless the Board determines that a de novo hearing is required, the Board's decision will 
be based exclusively on the record before the hearing examiner. Parties shall be 
instructed not to discuss or comment upon factual matters or evidence that were not 
presented to the hearing examiner or officially noticed. Parties may discuss or comment 
upon the legal matters in question and any other pertinent issues raised by the appeal. The 
Board shall disregard any discussion or comment regarding factual matters that were not 
in the record before the hearing examiner or officially noticed. The vote of three (3) 
Board members is required to affirm, modify, remand or reverse the decision of the 
hearing examiner. 
  

G. The Board's decision to affirm, modify, remand or reverse the decision of the hearing 
examiner shall be supported by written findings of fact and conclusions of law. When the 
Board votes to adopt the staff recommendation unchanged, the parties to the appeal will 
be notified only of the Board's decision. When the Board does not adopt the staff 
recommendation as written, a written decision of the Board shall be mailed to the parties 
or their representative of record.  

H. Continuances of dates set for Board action on appeals shall be granted by a majority of 
the Board or by the Executive Director only for good cause shown. A written request and 
the reasons for it must be received by the Board at least two (2) business days prior to the 
scheduled hearing, unless good cause is shown for later request. The written request must 
contain the reasons for the continuance, an explanation of what efforts were made to 
ascertain the position of the other parties regarding the request for a continuance, and 
mutually acceptable alternative dates. Copies of this written request must be sent 
immediately to all other parties and proof of service must accompany the written request 
filed with the Board.  

I. Reconsideration.  

1) At the discretion of the Executive Director or their designee, an appeal may be treated as a 
request for reconsideration and referred back to the Hearing Examiner for such 
reconsideration only if it is claimed by the appellant that: 
a) There was good cause for a failure to respond to a petition; or  
b) There was good cause for a failure to appear at a settlement conference or hearing; or  
c) The appellant wishes to present relevant evidence that could not, with reasonable 

diligence, have been discovered and produced at the hearing.  
d) The decision resulted from a clearly inaccurate application of the law; staff members 

discovered a problem with the record; the underlying legal standard upon which the 
decision is based changed before final disposition of the case, including matters subject to 
a pending petition for writ of administrative mandamus; or any other reason the case 
should be remanded for reconsideration for administrative efficiency.  
 



ITEM J-1 
ATTACHMENT 4 

OPTION B 
 
2) In the event that the Executive Director or their Designee finds good cause exists to treat the 

appeal as a request for reconsideration, the Executive Director or their Designee shall, within 
a reasonable time period, issue an Order of Reconsideration, which shall describe the basis of 
granting reconsideration, the scope of issues to be reconsidered by the Hearing Examiner, 
and modified procedures, if any, of the hearing process to expedite the matter for a hearing 
on reconsidered issues. The Rent Program shall send the Order of Reconsideration to all 
parties and schedule a hearing consistent with the Order of Reconsideration within a 
reasonable time period.  

 



This page intentionally left blank 



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM  
Department: Rent Program Department Head: Nicolas Traylor Phone: 620-6564 
   
Meeting Date:  July 17, 2019 Final Decision Date Deadline:  July 17, 2019 

 
STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE: Section 11.100.060 of the Rent Ordinance establishes a general framework for Rent Board 
composition, conduct, powers and duties, and qualifications. Since March 2017, the Rent Board has operated under these 
basic provisions. Additional regulations could provide greater clarity as to qualifications for Rent Board members, 
managing conflicts of interest, vacancies, the effective date of adopted regulations, Boardmember suspension, and public 
meeting decorum and procedure. Staff members have proposed particular topics where regulations could be created to 
clarify the intent of the Rent Ordinance and are requesting policy direction from the Rent Board, should it desire to 
promulgate additional regulations in this realm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             
INDICATE APPROPRIATE BODY  

 City Council  Redevelopment 
Agency 

 Housing Authority  Surplus Property 
Authority 

 Joint Powers 
Financing Authority 

 Finance 
Standing 
Committee 

 Public Safety Public 
Services Standing 
Committee 

 Local Reuse Authority Other: Rent Board 

    
 

  

ITEM   

 Presentation/Proclamation/Commendation (3-Minute Time Limit) 

 Public Hearing    Regulation    Other:  
 Contract/Agreement   Rent Board As Whole 
 Grant Application/Acceptance  Claims Filed Against City of Richmond     

 Resolution     Video/PowerPoint Presentation (contact KCRT @ 620.6759)  

 

rev 2/06  P:\City_Managers\Agenda Rqst  Formrev.doc 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  RECEIVE a presentation on possible Rent Board governance regulations and PROVIDE 
direction to staff – Rent Program (Nicolas Traylor/Paige Roosa 620-6564). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 

J-2. 



This page intentionally left blank 



 

440 Civic Center Plaza, Richmond, CA 94804-1630 
Telephone: (510) 234-RENT (7368)   Fax: (510) 307-8149   www.richmondrent.org 

CITY OF RICHMOND RENT PROGRAM 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: July 17, 2019 
 
TO: Members of the Rent Board 
 
FROM: Nicolas Traylor, Executive Director 
 Paige Roosa, Deputy Director 
  
SUBJECT: RENT BOARD GOVERNANCE POLICIES 
 
STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE: 
 
Section 11.100.060 of the Rent Ordinance establishes a general framework for Rent 
Board composition, conduct, powers and duties, and qualifications. Since March 2017, 
the Rent Board has operated under these basic provisions. Additional regulations could 
provide greater clarity as to qualifications for Rent Board members, managing conflicts 
of interest, vacancies, the effective date of adopted regulations, Boardmember 
suspension, and public meeting decorum and procedure. Staff members have proposed 
particular topics where regulations could be created to clarify the intent of the Rent 
Ordinance and are requesting policy direction from the Rent Board, should it desire to 
promulgate additional regulations in this realm. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
RECEIVE a presentation on possible Rent Board governance regulations and 
PROVIDE direction to staff – Rent Program (Nicolas Traylor/Paige Roosa 620-6564). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no fiscal impact related to this item. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Background 
 
Section 11.100.060 of the Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction, and Homeowner 
Protection Ordinance (Rent Ordinance) establishes basic provisions governing the Rent 
Board. Subsections include (the following is a summary of these provisions, a full 
excerpt is contained in Attachment 1): 
 

  

AGENDA REPORT 



ITEM J-2 

Page 2 of 4 
July 17, 2019 
 

a. Composition – the Rent Board is comprised of five Richmond residents 
 

b. Eligibility – No more than two members of the Rent Board may own or manage 
rental property or act as realtors. Anyone nominated to the Board must be in 
compliance with the Rent Ordinance and all other local, state and federal housing 
laws 
 

c. Full Disclosure of Hearings – Nominees shall submit a verified statement listing 
their interests and dealings in real property during the previous three years 
 

d. Term of Office – Boardmembers shall serve terms of two years and may be 
reappointed for a total of four terms for a total of fewer than 10 years 
 

e. Powers and Duties – Establishes the powers and duties of the Board, such as, 
but not limited to, establishing a Base Rent, making adjustments in rent 
increases and decreases, issuing orders, rules, and regulations, conducting 
hearings, charging fees, collecting notices of rent increase and termination of 
tenancy, and reporting annually to the City Council on the status of rental 
housing covered under the Rent Ordinance 
 

f. Rules and Regulations – The Board shall issue rules and regulations to further 
the purpose of the Rent Ordinance 
 

g. Community Education – The Board shall publicize the Rent Ordinance through 
the creation of a brochure so that all Richmond residents have the opportunity to 
become informed about their legal rights and duties 
 

h. Meetings – The Board holds regularly scheduled meetings to ensure the timely 
performance of its duties 
 

i. Quorum – Three Boardmembers constitutes a quorum  
 

j. Voting – The affirmative vote of three Boardmembers is required for a decision 
 

k. Dockets – The Board maintains in its office all hearing dockets 
 

l. Financing – The Board finances its reasonable and necessary expenses through 
charging an annual Residential Rental Housing Fee 
 

m. Integrity and Autonomy of Board – The Board (Rent Program) operates as an 
integral part of the government of the City, but exercises its powers and duties 
independent from the City Council, City Manager, and City Attorney except by 
request of the Board 
 

n. Budget – Prior to July 1 each year, the Board holds a public hearing and adopts 
an annual budget for the ensuing fiscal year 



ITEM J-2 

Page 3 of 4 
July 17, 2019 
 

o. Personnel – The Board assesses annually that sufficient number of staff are 
employed as is necessary to perform its function 
 

p. Board Legal Work – The Board hires legal staff to represent and advise the 
Board and its staff in any civil matters, actions, or proceedings 
 

q. Contracts and Purchases – The Board procures goods and services as do other 
City agencies using existing support services within the City 
 

r. Conforming Regulations – The Board has the authority to enact replacement 
regulations consistent with the intent and purpose of any portion of the Rent 
Ordinance that is declared invalid or unenforceable by decision of a court of 
competent jurisdiction 
 

s. Reporting and Fee Payment Requirements – The Board may authorize the 
withholding of rent from Tenants of Rental Units for which the Rental Housing 
Fee has not been paid or for which a notice of rent increase or termination of 
tenancy has not been filed 

 
Additional regulations could provide greater clarity as to qualifications for Rent Board 
members, managing conflicts of interest, vacancies, the effective date of adopted 
regulations, Board member suspension, and public meeting decorum and procedure. 
 
Possible Rent Board Governance Policies 
 
The Rent Board is authorized under Section 11.100.060(f) of the Rent Ordinance to 
enact additional regulations to govern itself. Such regulations are commonplace in peer 
jurisdictions with rent boards, and could address policy questions such as: 
 
 If a Boardmember does not own or manage rental property themselves, but an 

immediate family member has interest or manages real property or is a realtor, 
does the Boardmember “count” as one of two members who may own or manage 
rental property or act as realtors under Section 11.100.060(b) of the Rent 
Ordinance? 
 

 What constitutes a conflict of interest for a Boardmember? 
 

 Can Boardmembers file Rent Adjustment Petitions? How should this process 
work as to avoid bias or perception of bias? 

 
 How should vacancies be handled? 

 
 Should rules and regulations issued by the Board continue to become effective 

immediately upon adoption, or should such policies become effective 30 days 
after adoption and/or a “second reading”? 

 



ITEM J-2 

Page 4 of 4 
July 17, 2019 
 

 What are the grounds for Boardmember suspension? On a related note, what is 
the process if a Boardmember’s eligibility is questioned? For example, what if a 
Boardmember violates a local, state, or federal housing law, or is themselves not 
in compliance with the Rent Ordinance? 

 
 What policies should govern Boardmember decorum and procedure during public 

meetings? For example, when is the agenda packet to be published? Where are 
meetings to be held, and when? What types of items may be heard in closed 
session? 
 

 How would the Board like correspondence addressed to the Board to be 
handled? If correspondence is profane or potentially slanderous or libelous, 
should such correspondence be included in Rent Board agendas? 
 

Established Regulations in Peer Jurisdictions 
 
Examples of established regulations in the cities of Berkeley, San Francisco, and Santa 
Monica are included as Attachments 2 – 4 of this report. These examples are not meant 
to limit the scope of such regulations, but are meant to illustrate the types of regulations 
that may be established to govern Rent Board activities. 
 
Recommended Action 
 
Specifically, staff members are requesting policy direction from the Rent Board 
concerning the following questions: 
 
 Does the Board wish to enact regulations governing its activities? 

 
 Which, if any, areas of regulation would the Board like to explore? 

 
 How, if at all, would the Board prefer staff members bring forth proposed policy 

options for the Board’s consideration? (E.g. piecemeal or comprehensive) 
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
 
Attachment 1 – Richmond Municipal Code Section 11.100.060  
 
Attachment 2 – City of Berkeley Rent Board Regulations 601 – 690 
 
Attachment 3 – City of San Francisco Rent Board Regulations Part 2: Board 

Organization and Procedures 
 
Attachment 4 – City of Santa Monica Rent Board Regulations Chapter 1: Rules for 

Board Meetings 
 



render the Landlord liable to the Tenant for actual damages, including damages for emotional 
distress, in a civil action for wrongful eviction. The Tenant or the Rent Board may seek 
injunctive relief and money damages for wrongful eviction. A Tenant prevailing in an action 
for wrongful eviction shall recover costs and reasonable attorney's fees. 

11.100.060 Richmond Rent Board 

(a) Composition. There shall be in the City of Richmond a Rent Board. The Board shall 
be made up ofRichrnond residents. The Board shall consist of five Board Members appointed 
by the City Council. The Board shall elect annually as chairperson one of its members to serve 
in that capacity. 

(b) Eligibility. Duly qualified residents of the City of Richmond are eligible to serve as 
Members of the Board. There shall be no more than two members that own or manage any 
rental property or are realtors. Anyone nominated to this board must be in compliance with 
this Chapter and all other local, state and federal laws regulating the provision of housing. 

(c) Full Disclosure of Holdings. Nominees for the position of Board Member shall 
submit a verified statement listing all of their interests and dealings in real property,. including 
but not limited to its ownership, sale or management, during the previous three (3) years. The 
Board may promulgate additional regulations. 

(d) Term of Office. Board Members shall serve terms of two (2) years and maybe 
reappointed for a total of four (4) full terms for a total of fewer than ten (10) years. 

(e) Powers and Duties. The Board shall have the following powers and duties: 

(1) Establish a Base Rent under Section 11.100.070 (a). 

(2) Make adjustments ·in the Rent Increase and Decreases -in accordance with 
Section 11.100.070. 

(3) Set Rents at fair and equitable levels in order to achieve the intent of this 
Chapter. 

(4) Issue orders, rules and regulations, conduct hearings and charge fees as set 
forth below. 

(5) Make such studies, surveys and investigations, conduct such hearings, and 
obtain such information as is necessary to carry out its powers and duties. 

(6) Report annually to the City Council of the City of Richmond on the status of 
rental housing covered by this chapter. Reports shall include a summary of the 
numbers of notices served, the basis upon which they were served, the amount of the 
Rent increases and the addresses for which they were served. 

(7) Charge and collect registration fees, including penalties for late payments. 

11 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 1



(8) Collect and/or receive copies of notices of termination oftenancy and changes 
in terms of tenancy. 

(9) A searchable database will be created so that service of notice may be 
detennined as well information for the reports described above. 

(10) Administer the withdrawal process for the removal of Rental Units from rental 
housingmarketunder sections 11.100,050 (a)(6)and(7). 

(11) Administer oaths and affirmations and subpoena witnesses. 

(12) Establish rules and regulations for deducting penalties and settling civil claims 
under Section 11.100.100. 

( 13) Refer violations of this Chapter to appropriate authorities for prosecution. 

(14) Seek injtmctive and other civil relief under Section 11.100.100- 110. 

(15) Any other duties necessary to administer and enforce this Chapter. 

(f) Rules and Regulations. The Board shall issue and follow such rules and regulations, 
including those which are contained in this Chapter, as will further the purposes of the 
Chapter. The Board shall publicize its rules and regulations prior to promulgation on its 
website and any other appropriate medium. All rules and regulations, internal staff 
memoranda, and written correspondence explaining the decisions, orders, and policies of the 
Board shall be kept in the Board's office and shall be available to the public for inspection and 
copymg. 

(g) Community Education. The Board shall publicize this Chapter so that all residents of 
Richmond will have the opportunity to become informed about their legal rights and duties 
under this Chapter. The Board shall prepare a brochure which fully describes the legal rights 
and duties of Landlords and Tenants under The Fair Rent, Just Cause for Eviction and 
Homeowner Protection Ordinance. The brochure shall also include helpful information for 
homeowners. The brochure will be available to the public, and each Tenant of a Rental Unit 
shall receive a copy of the brochure from his, her or their Landlord. Landlords shall provide 
the brochure at the commencement of the tenancy and with each notice of rent increase. This 
brochure will be made available for download from the City ofRichmond website and/or other 
appropriate technology. Information about the Ordinance shall be made available in all other 
languages that are requested by the community. 

(h) Meetings. The Board shall hold such regularly scheduled meetings as are necessary to 
ensure the timely performance of its duties under this Chapter. All. regular and special 
meetings shall be called and conducted in accordance with state law. There shall be minimally 
one ( 1) meeting a year so that the Board may comply with 11.100.070. 

(i) Quorum. Three (3) Members shall constitute a quorum for the Board. 

(j) Voting. The affirmative vote of three (3) Members of the Board is required for a 
decision, including all motions, regulations, and orders of the Board. 

12 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 1



(k) Dockets. The Board shall maintain and keep in its office all hearing dockets. 

(1) Financing. The Board shall finance its reasonable and necessary expenses by charging 
Landlords annual registration fees in amounts deemed reasonable by the Board. The Board is 
also empowered to request and receive funding when and if necessary from any available 
source for its reasonable and necessary expenses. 

(1) Residential Rental Housing Fee. All Landlords shall pay a business license 
fee if required by Richmond Municipal Code plus a Residential Rental Housing Fee. 
The City shall charge the Residential Rental Housing Fee at the same time as the 
business license fee. The amount will be determined by the City Council after a 
recommendation by the Board is provided to the City Council. The City Council will 
vote on the recommendation at the next regularly scheduled meeting. The budget 
shall be funded by the Rental Housing Fee. 

(2) This fee shall become due within thirty (30) days of inception of new tenancy if 
no fee was paid the prior year. Ongoing tenancies shall have fees collected at the 
same time as the City business license each year. 

(m) Integrity and Autonomy of Board. The Board shall be an integral part of the 
government of the City, but shall exercise its powers and duties under this Chapter 
independent from the City Council, City Manager, and City Attorney, except by request of the 
Board. The City shall provide infrastructural support on an ongoing basis as it would with any 
other department. Doing the transition period before the Board Members are appointed and an 
Executive Director is hired, the City shall take whatever steps necessary to perform the duties 
of the Board and implement the purpose of this Chapter. 

(n) Budget. The Board shall, prior to July 1 of each year, hold a public hearing on a 
proposed budget and adopt an annual budget for the ensuing fiscal year. At least thirty-five 
days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the Board's Executive Director shall submit to 
the Board the proposed budget as prepared by the Executive Director. After reviewing the 
same and making such revisions as it may deem advisable, the Board shall determine the time 
for the holding of a public hearing thereon and shall cause to be published a notice thereof not 
less than ten days prior to said hearing,_ by at least one insertion inthe official newspaper. 
Copies of the proposed budget shall be available for inspection by the public in the office of 
the Board at least ten days prior to said hearing. The City Council and the City Manager shall 
have no authority to oversee, supervise, or approve this budget. Upon final adoption, the 
budget shall be in effect for the ensuing fiscal year and the amounts stated therein shall be and 
become appropriated by the Board for the respective objects and purposes therein specified. At 
any meeting after the adoption of the budget the Board may amend or supplement the budget 
by the affirmative votes of at least three members. Copies of the adopted budget and any 
amendments or supplements shall be filed with the City Clerk, and City Manager. Necessary 
adjustments to city administrative procedures shall be made. 

( o) Personnel. The Board shall review and assess yearly that sufficient number of staff 
are employed, including an Executive Director, hearing examiners, housing counselors and 
legal staff, as may be necessary to perform its function efficiently in order to fulfill the 
purpose of this Chapter. The Executive Director shall be hired by the Board. All employees of 

13 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 1



the Board shall be hired, terminated, suspended, and demoted in accordance with the Charter 
and implementing provisions of the Municipal Code. 

(p) Board Legal Work. Legal staff hired by the Board shall represent and advise the 
Board, its Members, and its staff in any civil matters, actions, or proceedings in which the 
Board, its Members, or its staff, in or by reason of their official capacity, are concerned or are 
a party. The Board may, in its sole discretion, and without approval of the City Council, retain 
private attorneys to furnish legal advice or representation in particular matters, actions or 
proceedings. 

( q) Contracts and Purchases. The Board shall procure goods and services as do other 
City agencies using existing support services within the City as would any other department, 
i.e. Finance, Information Technology, and Public Works among others. Provided, however, 
that the Board shall have sole and final authority to employ attorneys, legislative lobbyists, 
and other professionals, and to approve contracts for such professional services. 

(r) Conforming Regulations. If any portion of this Chapter is declared invalid or 
unenforceable by decision ofa.court. ofcompetentjurisdictiDn or rendered invalid m 
unenforceable by state or federal legislation, the Board and not the City Council shall have 
authority to enact replacement regulations consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
invalidated provision and applicable law. Such replacement regulations shall supersede 
invalidated or unenforceable provisions of this Chapter to the extent necessary to resolve any 
inconsistency .. The subject matter of such replacement regulations shall be limited to rent 
control matters as enumerated in this Chapter. 

(s) Reporting and Fee Payment Requirements. 

(1) Within sixty (60) days after the adoption of this Chapter, all Landlords shall be 
required to file a. copy of all rental increase notices, change of terms oftenancy and 
tenancy termination notices with the Board before serving the tenant the notice. A 
proof of service with time and date of service of notice shall be included with notice 
filed with the City. 

(2) If the Board, after the Landlord has proper notice and after a hearing, 
determinesthataLandlordhaswillfully andknowingly failedto properly report, as 
described above, any rental increase notices, change of terms of tenancy or tenancy 
termination, or pay the Rental Housing fee, the Board may authorize the Tenant of 
such a non-reporting unit or where the Rent housing fee is unpaid to withhold all or a 
portion of the Rent for the Rental Unit until such time as the Rental Housing fee is 
paid or notice filed. After a notice is properly filed or fee paid, the Board .shaJJ 
determine what portion, if any, of the withheld Rent is owed to the Landlord for the 
period in which the notice was not properly filed or fee paid. Whether or not the 
Board allows such withholding, no Landlord who has failed to properly report or pay 
the fee shall at any time increase Rents for a Rental Unit until such fee or notice is 
reported. This shall go into effect thirty (30) days after determination of the Board. 

14 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 1



(3) Further, failing to pay the fee or filing a copy of a notice before the filing of an 
unlawful detainer is a complete defense to an unlawful detainer. No Board action is 
required for defense to be alleged or litigated in an unlawful detainer. 

(t) In the event the establishment of the Board under this Section is adjudged to be invalid 
for any reason by a court of competent jurisdiction, the City Council shall designate one 
or more City departments, agencies, boards, or commissions to perform the duties ofthe 
Board prescribed by this Chapter. 

11.100.070 Rent Control; Right of Reasonable Return for Landlords 

(a) Establishment of Base Rent. Beginning the effective date of this Chapter, no 
Landlord shall charge Rent for any Controlled Rental Units in an amount greater than the Rent 
in effect on July 21, 2015 except for increases expressly allowed under this Chapter. The Rent 
in effect on that date is the Base Rent. If there was no Rent in effect on July 21, 2015, the Base 
Rent shall be the Rent that was charged on the first date that Rent was charged following July 
21, 2015. For tenancies commencing after the adoption of this Chapter, the Base Rent is the 
initial _rental xate .in .eftect on the date the tenancy commences. As used in this Subsection, the 
term "initial rental rate" means only the amount of Rent actually paid by the Tenant for the 
initial term of the tenancy. The Base Rent is the reference point from which the Maximum 
Allowable Rent shall be adjusted upward or downward in accordance with Section 11.100.070 
(c). 

(b)Annual General Adjustment. No later than June 30 each year, the Board shall 
announce the percentage by which Rent for eligible Rental Units will be generally adjusted 
effective September 1 of that year. 

(1) The Annual General Adjustment shall be equal to one hundred (100%) percent 
of the .percentage .increase in. the Consumer Price Index ( All.Urban Consumers, San 
Francisco-Oakland-San Jose region, or any successor designation of that index that 
may later be adopted by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics) as reported and 
published by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, for the 12-
month period ending as of March of the current year. 

(2) Subparagraph 1 of this Subsection notwithstanding, in no event shall the 
Annual General Adjustment be less than zero percent (0%). 

(3) For the period between the effective date of this Charter and the first Annual 
General Adjustment announced September 1, the landlord may increase the 
Maximum Allowable Rent to include one Annual General Adjustment for September 
2016. 

(c) Petitions. Upon receipt of a petition by a Landlord and/or a Tenant, the Maximum 
Allowable Rent of individual Controlled Rental Units may be adjusted upward or downward 
in accordance with the procedures set forth elsewhere in this Section. The petition shall be on 
the form provided by the Board and shall include a declaration by the Landlord that the Rental 
Unit meets all requirements of this Chapter. Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Section, the Board or hearing examiner may refuse to hold a hearing and/or grant a Rent 

15 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 1



This page intentionally left blank 



��������� ��	
��
��������
������������
�����������������

�

�����   !"�
���#�������!��������
$%
�#���&�
���$����'�(�)����	
��
���$����
���$���!���*+��� �����

�,!��!������� �-����
�����
�"�'���"��������������)�����������
�-��
�
�����'�"������������'���'����
�����'���'.����
�
���!/01�2�
�
���������'�
�'���
������"
����������#���*��'�
�'����
��
���������	����
�����
�
����������'� �
���,��'������������	���'���'�"���������'���'� �
����,��'�������
���������	!�3������
����������#��	�-����
����
��4�'������
�"�����
���������	!/51�6*"��
�������-�'�'�����
#��"
����7�8�����"��'��	�������
�
���������'�
�'���
������"
����������#�"��'
"
�'��""��'��	�
���������-��������������
�������%
#"���
����!���'�
��)���
����
��
���
����
�����
���
����
�����""
���"��)
�
�#���
����
�'�#����������'����"�����
����-�'��"��������
�'�
��
��������	��*�)����!�9��
���� ����)����������)����"������ ��	�
��
�
���
��
������
�"��
��
�
����""
���'�#��
�����'�-�'
������������'��"���
���#
�'���������-��	�
��
�
���
��
����
���
�
������"������

�����'���
�����"��'��������'��"�����
��'����)����������"�))��"���������"�������
���	����*"��
������-�'�'����%�"
����4�:�7;8������������
�
��
���
����
!�9��
���������	��*�)�����'�
��)�����
��
�
��
����
������
���
����
�����""
���"����������
���"��������
�"�'�#��
������'���'�������#�"�)������"
�-����
���'�
�����"����'����
�����
�"�����
���'�
����� ��"�����
������*
�'
������� ��	����-�"�����
��������	��*�)����.��'�"������� ��"��-��������
��!<6���"
�-��;�
����4�����,=�>?@�A�>BB�/CDEDCFDG1�@HIJ�KLMNOPMQR�KSTQLSTQO�UQL�CTNTUV�MW�CTXYVUOPMQZ9
����
����
���������
������
�"���
����
�#�����#���"�)���)
)����"�'
������[
���)��
�������'��
�����)��')��
�����������������
�%
�#���&�
��������'���	
��
����!�3������-����������
������
�"�����������
#���
�����'�'����)�'����'�#�������
#��[
��
����'��
�'���	
��
�����*"��
�
��
����*
��
�
��
��
"���	
��
����������'������*�������!�@H?J�\P]ZO�UQL�ET̂MQL�CTULPQXZ�UQL�DWWT̂OP_T�GUOT�MW�CTXYVUOPMQ�M]�CTNTUV/K1�3�����������#��������
���'���"��'����'��	���������������'���	
��
�������'���'�������������!��
����)��
��	��
� ��"�����������'���	
��
��������#�������"�'����
����	��'��������"��'����'��	��
������'�)����'��
���)��'������������
�����	
��
���!�6*"��
�������-�'�'������	
��
������̀�����	
��
������������'�������������������#�"�)������"
�-��
�����
#��"�
����
�'�����	
��
��������
���������
���'�
���������"��#�'����
�����	
��
���������'��!�3�����
#��"
������������
�������
��
����'��
�������������
���a��������'b
�
)��
!

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 2



��������� ��	
��
��������
������������
�����������������

�

�����   !"�
���#�������!��������
$%
�#���&�
���$����'�(�)����	
��
���$����
���$���!���*+��� �,���

-./�0�����
��
�������
������"��'����'��	��
�������'�)���)����"���	���
�����������'���	
��
������')����'��
�
����������'���	
��
���� �
��
���"���	�������� ��	�
�����"��'����'��	� �
��

���1��	�
���
�"���''�
���������'��	�����
����������'���	
��
���!2��1���'���	
��
������3�����"
�1����������������!4�5678�9:;<=>�:?�@A:B:C>D�E=;<:FG��������������'���1�������������	
��
���� ��"��
�������'������
��'��"��
�����'�
��)�����
��
��
#��""�))��
����
�'�#������"�
�'��
�������'�)���'���"
�
��
���
�"�����
����������'���1�������#��	�1�����
�������� ��	�)������-E/�H����'�
���1����������� �����������'��� ��

�����I
��
�������
�"�������	
��
�����"
����� �
��
������'!-./�J�������������
�����
���K
'	)��
����
�������'��)����'�
����������������	��
������������� ��)
�������'�#����1���
��#����
����
�'����
����������'��"
���!-L/�0
#�����'�����������)������ �����������1��	�
�����
������������������
"�����)���'�)��������
�������'�����������"��#�!M�������
���
��)������
�"��
�������������������1�'�'����
������"
������������
���1���'�
�������"
���
�����#��
�������'��
��
��
�
��
������
�"��!2��1���'���	
��
������3�����"
�1����������������!4�56N8�-OPQPORPS/��TO>UVWX;<:F�56N�A>C=<FD>D�>??>=;<Y>�EBA<W�Z[\�Z[[Z8]�56̂8�_>XA<FUM�������'�)��������
��'��"��
�����"������
�����'������)�����������)����
#��"�������	�"��"�����	�������'��'��
������)��')��
������������������	
��
���!�̀�����
#��"�������	�������'���
�
�)��
����	
)��
������"��
��
��������
��������������� ��
��	�����#�
��������#�����)�

�'!�̀��
�������'����"
����

�����'����
#��"�������	������'�)���������'�������
����
�'����������������������'
����

����&�'��������
�
�1���
��������

��
��
��������
��
�
�)��
�����	
)��
�����"��
��
�������� ��
��	!2��1���'���	
��
������a�����"
�1����������������!4�

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 2



��������� ��	
��
��������
������������
�����������������

�

�����   !"�
���#�������!��������
$%
�#���&�
���$����'�(�)����	
��
���$����
���$���!���*+��� �����

,-,.�/012103145�60789:;<=>?�,-,�@7AB=?C7C�7DD7B<=E7�FG@=:�HIJ�HIIH.K�,-L.�M9N:=B;<=>?�>D�0789:;<=>?AO�
������P��QRS�#
�������'�������
����'��
������)��')��
��������������������	
��
�����
�������'������"�
���
��#���
#�����'�����������)������ �����������P��	�
�����
�����������������"��"�����
))������
�����	
��
����������������'��!�T�������'�)��������
��'��"��
�����"�
���
�����
����
�*
����
����	
��
����������������'���
��#���
#�����'!�,-U.�1V7@87?BW�0789:;<=>?A�;?C�X@C7@A�>D�07G7;:/F5�T������P������������	
��
���������
���
	��������������
�������
������)��	��"����	
��
��������'��������������'��
�'��
��
��
�
��
�����
#'�P�����!/Y5�Z��
�������'�)����������'��	�
��
�
����'��
�����������	
��
���������'������������������"����������
����))�'��
��������P�
��������
#��"����"�������
����'�����
�����	������� ��������
�����	
��
��������'�������������)���#���'��
�'��������)��	��"����	
��
���������'������������!�T�������'�������������P��
����

����
��
�����"
�����)��	��"����	
��
������������������*��
��	���	
��
����
��������'�
�"���	�������
�
�������'������� �
��
��
��� ��������"
�
����')����
��
������'������	���
�����������"
���������������[
��"�������'������
����\!��!��������'��	��������)��	��"�����"���	������
�
������'������� ���������"�
'���� ��

����
�
�)��
� ��"��"��
�������'��"���
�������
������"���"���"
���� ��	�
������'������))�'��
���"
���!�T������"
)��
�������
�	��"���
�


�������'����"����������
������'�����
������"���
�


�������'������))�'��
���"
���!/]5�T����)��	��"����	
��
���������'�������������������#�"�)������"
�P��
�����'��
����#��
�������'��
 �
��
��'��	�
������P������������	
��
�����������
����������
���'�
�����"����'�#��
�������'������
����
�����	
��
���������'������������!/45�̂����	
��
���������'��������������'��
�'��������)��	��"���"
������������)�����������"
�����)���
�����_��'����
������
�������'�����"�)����'� �
����	
��
���������
���
	����R����"�
��P���������
�
����'��
�������
����)��	��"����	
��
���������'���������������������� �
����
����_��'��������'�"�)���
�'�
�����	
��
�����'��
�����������������"����#�����)������'��
��	�
����)��	��"����	
��
��������'���������������������)��')��
��
����
����
��
��
�
��
������P������������	
��
���������
���
	���R!/15�Z��
����P��
�����)��	��"����	
��
��������'��
�'��������)��')��
�
������*��
��	���	
��
����
��������
������
�������'�
��"�)���� �
���
#'�P������Q̀S���#�P���
�����	
��
��������
��*��
�'�������
��
"���)��	��"���)��')��
�������
����
����#�"�)������"
�P�!/a5�Z��
����P��
�����	
��
����������	��������'��
�'��������)��	��"����	
��
������'�
�������'�������
�"�)���� �
���
#'�P������Q'S���#�P����
"������
���������"���
�


���������������'���	
��
���!

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 2



��������� ��	
��
��������
������������
�����������������

�

�����   !"�
���#�������!��������
$%
�#���&�
���$����'�(�)����	
��
���$����
���$���!���*+��� �����

,-.�/��
����0��
������'�������������������	��������'��
�'��������)��	��"����'���������������'�
������'�������
��"�)���� �
���
#'�0������123���#�0���
�����	
��
��������
��*��
�'�������
���
"��)��	��"����'�������������������
����
����#�"�)������"
�0�!,4.�5�������'�������)�����������#��������
��
����
����
����
#��"���'���"���)�'������
������'��"���������)��	��"����	
��
���������'�������������������
��
����'��
����
������!6��0���'���	
��
������7�����"
�0����������������!8�6��0���'���	
��
������7�����"
�0����������������9�)��'�'��
#��"
����1�3�
��)����"�����
��
���	
��
����)���#��
��'�
���'��
�������������	
��
��������
�
�������'������� �"���	�������� ���
��
�����"
���')����
��
������'������	���
��������
�:�'����"�1�)��'�'��������;��73!8<=>�?�<@=�,ABCBADBE.�FAGHIJKLMNO�<@=�PGQRMOSGS�GTTGRLMUG�VWPMJ�X>Y�X>>XZ[�<@XZ�BTTGRLMUG�EKLG�NT�AIJGQ�KOS�AGHIJKLMNOQ�
������'���	
��
������'��
�'�#��
�������'�������#�"�)������"
�0�����
���'�
������
#��"�
����
�'����	
��
���������
����������
���'�
��������"����'�#��
�������'!6��0���'���	
��
�����\������"
�0����������������!8�<@]Z�VWWJMRKLMNO�NT�̂G_�AGHIJKLMNOQ�KOS�V̀ GOS̀ GOLQ�LN�BaMQLMOH�AGHIJKLMNOQ�LN�VRLMNOQbGOSMOH�cGTNPG�LdG�cNKPSe�������
��� �����
�
�'�������� ����'��
�'���	
��
�������'��)��')��
��
���*��
��	���	
��
����������������
��������
�
�������'������������'��	�#������
�������'��
�
���
�)������'��
��������)��')��
!6f���"
�0����������������!8�<@@�?�<g>�,ABCBADBE.�<>=Z�hMLMHKLMNO�ij�kǸ `MQQMNOGP,V.�hMLMHKLMNO�UZ�AGOL�CLKiMJMlKLMNO�KOS�BUMRLMNO�TNP�-NNS�kKIQG�mPSMOKORG!�������))�����������
���������������
�%
�#���&�
��������'� �������������
���������
�
�������������"�
�
��"
����"������	��	
���0���'�
�����������	�
����n����
��������"�)��
�����������
����
������
�%
�#���&�
������'�f0�"
�������o��'���
���:�'����"��������#��'��)�'�
����0��#���"��'�������������
#��"�
�
�
��������"����'�
�

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 2



��������� ��	
��
��������
������������
�����������������

�

�����   !"�
���#�������!��������
$%
�#���&�
���$����'�(�)����	
��
���$����
���$���!���*+��� �����

��,��
����#�����
��
������'�"�
�'�������#���
��
�����
��
����'��"���	�������������'

������'��������#���
�����������))��������!-./�0123452675!�8���������'��	�#��
�������'�
��
�����)�)#�������������
���������
�
�������������"�
�
�"
���������#�
�'�#��
�����
����
�������'��������))�'��
�����
����'����'���))������������)�
������'�� �
���
"���
����������
#9�"
�
����,�� ���'����"�������#��
�����
����
�"��!�:��
����
����'�'��))��������������
�������
� ����
�������'��
����'������'���))���������������#�����)�
����
����'���� ��
��	�������'��
��������!-;/�<6=>?�?7�@4AB65=!�������))����������
����'�'��
��
��
�
��
�����
�����������	�
�
����C
��
��� ��
��	���������	�#������
�������'���
� ��"��
����
����'�'���))���������)�������
�������'�
������
�
�����'���))���������������"��'�
����
��������!�D���������	�������#�����'� �
�����E�'��������"���
����
��� ��

�����C
��
����'���������'�"������������#��)�'�� �
�����E�'�������
���������	!�D������'�������)�����,���������
�
���*��'�
��
���������	����"����#�����'��	�
���������	��
��
���������
�����

��
���
�
�����C
��
����
����
����'�'���))�������������
�"
������ �����
�����
�	�
�����
�

����
����
����'�'���))������������
��������������
�����C
��
����������
�
�)��
!��
�
���������	��
���
����'�'���))�����������������,��
�����	�
�
��#����������
�'�#��"�
������������������
�
�,���
�������
��,�'��"����'�)������	
)��
�!-F/�<42G622675�7H�0123452675!�:�����
���
���������	������
������
#��C
��
�������	��
�������'"��"�
'���
��
��
���"����"
�����
�'�
��
�
����
����'�'���))��������� ����������
���������
�
������
���"�
�
��"
���������#�
�'�#��
�����
����
�������'��������))�'��
�������"��'�
����
��������!-I/�<4652?A?4J45?!�:�����
���
���������	������
������
#��C
��
�������	��
�������'����'��
��
�
���
����'�'���))������������������	����������
���������
�
������
�������
"�������#�
�'�"�
�
��"
�������'
��
����'���))��������� ����#���#���
�����
��
����'��"���	��
���'

������'���������#���
�������#���	�����
�%
�#���&�
��������'���))����������
�������'������������
�
�����'�)�)#��!�:��)����	�
���'�
��)���
�����
�������'�������"����'��������,�'��"����'���"
��������,��
�
�����'���))��������K���,��,�)��
����
�����
�	�
���!-L/�MNA65?6HH�7B�M4?6?6754B!�O����
����������
�����
��������))���������������#��'��)�'�
��#��������
���������
�
������
����"�
�
��"
�������
�����))������������-P/�����)�'������
���������
�
�����Q-R/���	����������
������������
�������� ��"�������)�'������
���������
�
�����Q-S/��������"������'���"
��������"������
�������
���"������
�'�����"��
���� ��"���������)�'������
��������
�
�����Q���-T/���
�
�
��������
�
�
� ��"���������)�'������
���������
�
�����!-U/�IHH4G?6V4�FA?4!�D�����
���������
��������"
��))�'��
����
���������,���#����)�9���
�����
�������'��'�
�����
����
�"�����
����
�����
#��"�&�'�#��
�������'!WX���"
�,��Y�
���Z�,�)#���[����\�!]

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 2



��������� ��	
��
��������
������������
�����������������

�

�����   !"�
���#�������!��������
$%
�#���&�
���$����'�(�)����	
��
���$����
���$���!���*+��� �����

,-��	���������"���'��
�'���.��/�!�0�'����'���'������1�'�#����
����������������
�"����������2�/�!�'��
�'�#��
�������'����-"
�#���������/�!3�456�7�455�89:;:9<:=>� ��"��
����	
��
�����?�'�*�(�)��@�A�#�B���"��@�C�*
�-����%�
��0���@����
�"
�D����
�%
�#���&�
��������'�����E�0��1���%
���
����������������2��2F
��
��������"�))��
�G�H)��������
I"�
���#�������!�����B������JE��K��/���.�/JE��K��/���?CL��2/�����.������)��������'����������������CCL��JE��K��/�����.

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 2



��������������	�
��������������������������	��
��������������������������	�

�
��������������������������
�������
����
������������
�
���
����������
����
��������������������������
���������������������������������������������������������� !"#!$�% &'#(!)�*+,-�.!"�,/+,0��11234562��7428��2942:;2<�==>�?@=A�B !'�C(.D"�EFF#& G� /H�I.!�J ))��K !L M�%L#' �N/-�%.!�OD.!&#)&(M�P.Q#F(D!#.�RS,-/T*-NN�EFF#& �U(LD)G�� � VG--�.+�+�W�HG--�X+�+��Y(!".Z�W�OD#".Z�[\(! �P(L!) Q#!$�U(LD)G� RG--�.+�+�W�J((!M�,G--�X+�+�W�SG--�X+�+�] Q X\(! G� Ŝ,H_/H/+S*-/�̂P(L!) Q#!$_O�̀ G� Ŝ,H_/H/+S*RRa b)#' G� ccc+)FDb+(D$�

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 3



����������	�
���	�
�����������������������
����
����������
���
��
�����	���
���������
�	��

�����������������

��������� �!�"�#�$�%�&�'��(����� ��!��"��#��$��%��&��'� (� ��  � !� "� #� $� %� &�

�)*+,�--� ./*+0�/+1*2-3*,-/2�*20�)+/4506+57�789:;<=�>?@A�5B89:;<=�<C�/CC;98DE�� � FGH�IJ�J�K�L�M��N�O�P��QRQS�� TU��H�HL��V�WX��U��YW��JP�ZI[\MJZI���\���I���VP�VU�\\��\�[��X�WH��HWI���U�HV�\]�V������VZJ�I���IJ�̂Z[�_���VZJ�I��XW�������H�IW���W��̀[��J�WI��N���a�TU���\�[�ZWI�WX���[U�WXXZ[���VU�\\���bMZ�����]W���WX��U��H�cW�Z�N�WX��U��H�HL��Va�G���U���IJ�WX�UZV�W��U���WI��N�������HP�I�Z�U����U�����VZJ�I��W��̂Z[�_���VZJ�I��dZ\\�L���\Z�ZL\���W�UW\J��U��V�H��WXXZ[��MI�Z\����\��V��WI��N�����X�����U���̀eZ���ZWI�WX��U�Z�����Ha�� TU���\�[�ZWI�WX�WXXZ[��V�H�N�L��U�\J���������M\���W��Ve�[Z�\�H���ZI��WX��U��YW��JP�e�W]ZJ�J�IW�Z[��WX�VM[U��I��\�[�ZWI�ZV�H�Z\�J��W��U��H�HL��V��IJ��\���I���V����\��V����I�F�fS�J�NV�e�ZW���W��U��H���ZI�����dUZ[U��U���\�[�ZWI�dZ\\�L��U�\Ja�TU�����VZJ�I��W���IN��dW�H�HL��V�H�N�[�\\���Ve�[Z�\�H���ZI��XW���U���\�[�ZWI�WX�WXXZ[��VP�ZX�I��J�JP�W��[�\\�XW��VM[U��I��\�[�ZWI���������M\���YW��J�H���ZI�P�e�W]ZJ�J��U��IW�Z[����bMZ��J�ZI��UZV�V�[�ZWI�ZV��Z]�Ia�789:;<=�>?@@�.<gDh�*B:8D=g:8E�� � FGH�IJ�J�K�L�M��N�O�P�QRQS�� G\���I���V�H�N�e���Z[Ze����ZI�JZV[MVVZWI��IJ�J�\ZL����ZWIV��IJ�H�N�e��VZJ��W]����ee��\�U���ZI�VP�LM��dZ\\�WI\N�L���\\Wd�J��W�]W���dU�I��U��H�HL���XW��dUWH��U���\���I����V��]�V��V��\���I����ZV�IW��e��V�I��W��U�V�L��I��̀[MV�J�X�WH�[WIVZJ����ZWI�WX�W��]W�ZI��WI���H������LN��U��YW��Ja�789:;<=�>?@>�089;E;<=E�ij�:k8�.<gDh�� G�J�[ZVZWI�WX��U��YW��J�VU�\\���bMZ�����H�cW�Z�N�WX��\\��U��H�HL��V�WX��U��YW��Ja�G\\�J�[ZVZWIV�WX��U��YW��J�VU�\\�L����[W�J�J�LN��W\\�[�\\�]W����IJ�����[W�J�WX�VM[U��[�ZWIV�VU�\\�L���]�Z\�L\���W��U��eML\Z[a�l�[U�H�HL���e��V�I�������H���ZI��VU�\\�]W����Z�U���XW��W�����ZIV���IN�bM�V�ZWI�eM���W���]W��P�MI\�VV��̀[MV�J�X�WH�]W�ZI��LN���HW�ZWI��JWe��J�LN���H�cW�Z�N�WX��U��H�HL��V�e��V�I�a�789:;<=�>?@m�.<gDh�n88:;=oE�� � FGH�IJ�J�pMI���qP��QRrs�pMI���RP��QQ�s�p�IM��N��RP��QQts��� � I�d�V�[�ZWI�F�S��JJ�Js��H�IJ�J��u��[U�OvP�OfftS�� F�S� TU��YW��J�VU�\\�H����WI��U��XZ�V��TM�VJ�N�WX���[U�HWI�U����rwff�eaHa����xWWH�

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 3



����������	�
���	�
�����������������������
����
����������
���
��
�����	���
���������
�	��

�����������������

��������� �!�"�#�$�%�&�'��(����� ��!��"��#��$��%��&��'� (� ��  � !� "� #� $� %� &�

�)*+�,-.���,�/�0+��1�2�3�4�55�6/�37�+�8�3�9��3:;5:-+�<�0;=-�3;�+�>?@*���A:�B��C;D�.E�3��E���F�G�=�005�-3���0���0�E-0;F�G�-���0�:�;-3�F�G+��E��H���;3��5E�00�I��E�0F�-3��E��3�A��J7�5F�G�.E;:E�;5�3�;�E�����0���0�E-0;F�G�3-���3��0�:�;-3�F�G+�-��C;;D�.E�3��E��K-��F�F�5;�3���5��3��0���3����F����-��B0�:��=-���E��H���;3�+��E��H���;3��5E�00�I��E�0F�-3��E��F�5;�3���F�F�����3F�����E��F�5;�3���F�B0�:�L�� CID� JE��K-��F�5E�00�H�������57:E�-�E����;H�5��5�3�:�55��G��-�5��G�:7���3��.;�E��E��.-�M0-�F�-����3F��-��FH;3;5����;/��H�����5L�� C:D� 8B�:;�0�H���;3�5�H�G�I��E�0F��3G��;H�+�7B-3�:-HB0;�3:��.;�E�<E������B�-/;5;-3�NL1**L�� CFD� O���;3�5�5E�00�I��-B�3��-��E��B7I0;:+��A:�B���E����3G�H�HI���H�G���P7;����E���H�����5�=-��.E;:E�H���;3�5�;3��A�:7�;/��5�55;-3������00-.�F�IG�0�.�I��F;5:755�F��3F�:-35;F���F�;3��A�:7�;/��5�55;-3+�B�-/;F�F��00�/-��5�-=��E��H�HI��5�5E�00�I��H�����5�-=�B7I0;:���:-�FL�� C�D� 9-��B7�B-5�5�-=���5�;H-3G�����7I0;:�Q���;3�5�I�=-����E��K-��F+�H�HI��5�-=��E��B7I0;:�5E�00�I��0;H;��F��-���5�;H-3G�-=��E����H;37��5�F7���;-3L�JE��K-��F�5E�00�E�/���E���7�E-�;�G��-�.�;/���E;5�0;H;���;-3����;�5�F;5:���;-3L�RSTUVWX�YZ[\�]̂ SX_̀�� aA:�B��=-��H���;3�5�;3��A�:7�;/��5�55;-3+��E�����3F��=-����:E�H���;3��-=��E��K-��F�5E�00�I��5�3���-���:E�H�HI����3F��0���3����.;�E�3-�;:��-=��E��H���;3�L�4-�;:�5�-=�H���;3�5��3F����3F�5�5E�00�I��B��B���F��3F�=;0�F�.;�E��E���7I0;:�,;I���G�;3��E��H�33����3F�.;�E;3��E���;H�5���P7;��F�IG�0�.L�O�����5�-3��3G�H���;3�b5����3F��H�G�I��:-35;F���F��3F�F�:;F�F�-7��-=��E��-�F���-3�.E;:E��E�G��BB����-3��E�����3F��7B-3��BB�-/�0�-=��E��H�HI��5�B��5�3�L�aA:�B��.E����B�-E;I;��F�IG�B7I0;:�3-�;:����P7;��H�3�5+��E��K-��F�H�G+�����3G�H���;3�5+�:-35;F����3F�F�:;F��H�����5�3-��-3��E�����3F��=-���E���H���;3��;=��E��H�HI��5�B��5�3��73�3;H-750G��BB�-/�L�RSTUVWX�YZ[c�dSe�fVSg�hWgiSXj̀UVWX�� � C6H�3F�F�8�B��HI����@+�@>>>k��H�3F�F�O��:E��N+��**?k��� � �H�3F�F�67�75���?+��**?D�� a�:E�H�HI���5E�00���:�;/��l)1L**�=-����:E�K-��F�H���;3������3F�F�;=��E��H���;3��0�5�5�

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 3



����������	�
���	�
�����������������������
����
����������
���
��
�����	���
���������
�	��

�����������������

��������� �!�"�#�$�%�&�'��(����� ��!��"��#��$��%��&��'� (� ��  � !� "� #� $� %� &�

�)*��+,-�.*/�+�*��0*���,1���+,1�2���3�1�45)*/��.*/��6��,*78��17�9:;<;;�,)��.��0���,1��2�+�+�2�++��.�1�+,-�.*/�+�,1���+,1�2���3�1�45)*/��.*/��6��,*7<��)���0�0=���*���.���2���1����,+�1*��,1�����17�1>��)*���1��1�,���0���,1�8�>*06�1+��,*1�+.�22�=��7����0,1�7�=4���)���1>���*��.���>�/�2������������,0���.��0�0=���3�+�,1�����17�1>��,1�6�*6*��,*1��*��.���*��2��,0��*)��.��0���,1�<�?@ABCDE�FGHI�JCEKEACKL�MCNALDNOP@�KEQ�RDESLCAB�DS�TEB@P@NB�?BKB@U@EB�� �/�+/�1���*��.��>*1)2,>��*)�,1����+��>*7���7*6��7�=4��.��V*��7�6/�+/�1���*�W*X��10�1��Y*7��Z�>�,*1�[:�;;��17��66�*X�7�=4��.��V*��7�*)�Z/6��X,+*�+8��22�0�0=��+�+.�22�7,+>2*+���22�6��+�1��.*27,1�+��17�,1����+�+�,1����2�6�*6���48�,1>2/7,1��,1����+�+�,1�>*�6*���,*1+8���/+�+8�*��*�.����1�,�,�+�3,�.����2�6�*6���4�.*27,1�+8�,1��>>*�7�1>��3,�.��662,>�=2��+�����2�3<�?@ABCDE�FGH\�RDESLCAB�DS�TEB@P@NB�� ]*�0�0=���*)��.��V*��7�*��0�0=���*)��.��+��))�*)��.��V*��7�0�4�6���,>,6����,1��.��>*1+,7����,*1�*��7�>,+,*1�*)��14�>�+��,1�3.,>.�+/>.�6��+*1�.�+��14�6��+*1�2�,1����+�8�,1>2/7,1���1��̂/,�4�,1����+�8��1�,1����+���+���2�172*�78���1�1��*��0�1���0�1��6��+*18�*��,+���2���7�=4�=2**7�*��0���,����*���7*6�,*1��*���2�172*�7�*����1�1��,1X*2X�7<�?@ABCDE�FGH_�̀ KCa@P�DS�b@cOLKBCDEN�� � de0�17�7�e/�/+��fg8�hg[gi�Z�6��0=���f:8�hggjk�� l.��V*��7�0�4����1���->�6�,*1��*��.�+�����/2��,*1+�)*���**7�>�/+��+.*31�,1��.��,1����+��*)�m/+�,>��*���*�6��X�1��.��7+.,6<��)���0�m*�,�4�*)��.��=*��7�X*��+��*��>>�6����2�172*�7�*����1�1���66��2�*1��.��=�+,+�*)�),1�1>,�2�.��7+.,68��.�4�0�4�7�2�������.�,���/�.*�,�4��*�.�����17�7�>,7��+/>.���>2�,0��*��1�e70,1,+����,X��n�3�o/7��8�+/=m�>���*��.���,�.��*)��66��2��*��.��=*��7<�?@ABCDE�FGHp�qQaCNDPr�stCECDEN�� ]*��7X,+*�4�*6,1,*18�*��2�*��3�,���18�+.�22�=���,X�1�=4��.��V*��78�*���14�*)�,�+�0�0=��+8��->�6��/6*1��.��X*���*)���0�m*�,�4�*)��.��V*��7<�?@ABCDE�FGFu�TEQ@v�DS�M@ACNCDEN�� l.��V*��7�+.�22��+��=2,+.��17�>*1�,1/*/+24�0�,1��,1���),2��*)�7�>,+,*1+��17�*6,1,*1+�,++/�7�=4�e70,1,+����,X��n�3�o/7��+��17��.��V*��78�6�*6��24�,17�-�7��+��*�+/=m�>��0�������17��X�,2�=2��)*��6/=2,>�,1+6�>�,*1�,1��.��V*��7�*)),>��=��3��1��.��.*/�+�*)�g��<0<�5�w�6<0<�*1�

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 3



����������	�
���	�
�����������������������
����
����������
���
��
�����	���
���������
�	��

�����������������

��������� �!�"�#�$�%�&�'��(����� ��!��"��#��$��%��&��'� (� ��  � !� "� #� $� %� &�

�)��*+�,-.��/012+34��5613+�,-7�8693�-�6:�+�03-364-��4+�6934364-�;�,�<����9�6+20�+�����5���/9�4-��6:��5��9��-64���=2�-�34���5��0693�-.������9�30���=2�1��6��5��06-��6:�-205���9�6+20�364��6��5��>6��+.��-�+����;34�+�<,��5��?/�02�3@��A3��0�6�7�B24+-�-6���0�3@�+�-5�11�<��+�96-3��+�)3�5��5��864��611��7�
ITEM J-2 

ATTACHMENT 3



This page intentionally left blank 



CHAPTER 1 
 

RULES FOR BOARD MEETINGS 
 
1000. Quorum 
 
Three Boardmembers shall constitute a quorum of the Board.  The affirmative vote of three members of 
the Board is required for a decision, including all motions, regulations, and orders of the Board. 
 
 
1001. Agenda 
 
The Secretary to the Board shall prepare the agenda.  The agenda, with all supporting matters shall be 
delivered to the Boardmembers one week prior to the Thursday Board Meeting  to which it pertains and 
shall be made available to the public no later than three o'clock on the Wednesday preceding the 
scheduled Board Meeting; providing, however, that at any time prior to the hour set for the meeting, any 
Boardmember, the Board's Counsel or the Administrator, may direct any matter he or she deems urgent 
to be placed upon the agenda; provided, further, that any item of public interest or concern added to the 
agenda after its publication to the general public shall not be considered unless it is accompanied by a full 
explanation by the advocate of such item and until after a majority of the Board has voted to do so.  
Matters directed to be placed on the Agenda by Boardmembers shall be listed thereon in order of receipt 
of such direction. 
 
 
1002. Time and Place for Holding Regular Meeting 
 
(a) The Santa Monica Rent Control Board does hereby establish meetings on the first, second, fourth 

and/or fifth Thursday of each month at 7:00 p.m.  However, if any such Thursday falls on any day 
designated by law by the City Council or by the Rent Control Board as a day for public feast, 
Thanksgiving or holiday, or if a change in the date for a regular meeting is reasonably necessary 
for the Board to perform its duties, the Board shall give the public reasonable notice of the 
alternative date for the meeting, which shall be preferably held on a Thursday. Regular meetings 
shall commence at 7:00 p.m., unless the agenda includes a closed-session item, in which case 
the meeting shall commence at 6:00 p.m. 

 
(b) The City Council Chamber in City Hall is established as the location for holding the Board's 

regular meetings held on the first, second, fourth and/or fifth Thursday of each month.  If, for any 
reason, the City Council Chamber is unavailable for a particular regular meeting, the Board shall 
give the public reasonable notice of the alternative site of the meeting.  If, however, the City 
Council Chamber becomes permanently unavailable, the Board shall, with reasonable notice, 
amend this regulation to set forth the new location(s) of its regular meetings. 

 
[1002 Amended 5/29/86; Effective 5/29/86] 
[1002(a) Amended 1/27/00; Effective 2/11/00] 
[1002(a)-(b) Amended 10/13/11; Effective 10/21/11] 
[1002(a) Amended 11/8/18; Effective 11/15/18] 
 
 
1003. Meetings to be Public -- Exception for Closed Sessions 
 
(a) All regular, adjourned regular, and special meetings of the Rent Control Board shall be public; 

provided, however, that the Rent Control Board may hold Closed Sessions during a regular or 
special meeting, from which the public may be excluded, for the purpose of considering the 
matters referred to in §§54956.7-54957.10 of the California Government Code relating to Closed 
Sessions of the legislative body, or pursuant to other provisions of law. 

 
 The above section is specifically limited by the following: 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 4



 
(1) Restrictions in Closed Sessions do not apply to meetings of committees of the Rent 

Control Board consisting of less than a quorum of its members. 
 
(2) Closed Sessions may not be held to consider the broad category of "personnel" matters. 
 
(3) Closed Sessions relating to personnel are limited to those relating to the appointment, 

employment, evaluation of performance, or dismissal of an employee or to hear 
complaints or charges brought against such employee. 

 
(4) Closed Sessions may not be held to determine the compensation of employees not 

represented by a collective bargaining organization. 
 

(b) The general categories permitting Closed Sessions shall include, but not be limited to: 
 

(1) Consider the employment, performance evaluation, or dismissal of an employee, or to 
hear charges brought against such person unless the employee in question requests a 
public hearing, in which event a public hearing shall be permitted. 

 
(2) Discuss with the Board counsel pending, proposed or anticipated litigation where the 

threat of litigation is likely or would be likely, if discussed in an open meeting. 
 
(3) Meeting with Attorney General, District Attorney, Sheriff or Chief of Police (or their 

Deputies) on matters "posing a threat to the security of public buildings or a threat to the 
public's right of access to public services or public facilities." 

 
(4) Instruct Board staff and/or authorized negotiators concerning salaries, salary schedules 

or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits prior to or during negotiations with 
employee organizations. 

 
(5) Negotiate and have discussions with employee organization representatives following 

intervention of a state labor conciliator in a labor dispute. 
 
(6) Instruct Board staff and authorized negotiators concerning purchase, sale, exchange or 

lease of real property for the purpose of giving instructions regarding the price and terms 
of payment. 

 
(7) Consider those matters which by law are properly subject to Closed Sessions. 
 

(c) No member of the Rent Control Board, employee, or any other person present during a Closed 
Session of the Rent Control Board shall disclose to any person the content or substance of any 
discussion which took place during said closed session unless the Rent Control Board shall 
authorize the disclosure of such information by majority vote, or unless such disclosure is 
required, and only to the extent so required, by the provisions of §54957.2 of the California 
Government Code. 

 
(d) At any given meeting, no more than one Commissioner may appear at open or closed sessions of 

the Board’s meetings by teleconference, subject to limitations and noticing requirements imposed 
by Government Code § 54953. A Commissioner wishing to appear by teleconference must so 
notify the Board Secretary at the earliest possible moment, but no later than 72 hours before the 
time at which the meeting is scheduled to begin. 

 
[1003 Amended 6/12/97; Effective 6/20/97] 
[1003(a) Amended 10/13/11; Effective 10/21/11] 
[1003(d) Adopted 11/8/18; Effective 11/15/18] 
 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 4



1004. Board Correspondence 
 
(a) Non-Board Items 
 
 Written communications addressed to the Board, the subject matter of which comes within the 

jurisdiction of any other Board, Commission or Department of the City, may be referred to such 
Body or Department, or both, by the Secretary, and such communications shall not be placed on 
the Board agenda. 

 
 Any person submitting a written communication to the Board which is subsequently referred 

another Board, Commission, or Department of the City shall be notified of such referral by the 
Secretary.  If dissatisfied with either the action of the Secretary or the action of the Body or 
Department to which the communication was referred, such person may appeal to the Board. 

 
(b) The Secretary is authorized to open all mail or other written communications collectively 

addressed to the Board and to give it immediate attention to the end that all administrative 
business referred to in said communications which does not necessarily require Board action may 
be acted upon between Board Meetings. 

 
(c) Board Items 
 
 Correspondence collectively addressed to the Board shall be received and opened by the 

Secretary, transmitted to the appropriate officer having jurisdiction, and placed on the agenda if 
Board action is deemed appropriate by the Secretary, except in the following circumstances: 

 
(1) No communication containing material which: 
 

(i) Is profane; 
 
(ii) Is in the nature of a criminal or civil slander, or is potentially slanderous or 

libelous; 
 
(iii) Advocates or opposes the candidacy of any person or party for any elective 

office; 
 
(iv) Is primarily an advertisement or promotion or has as a substantial purpose the 

advancement of any cause the major benefit of which is private and not public; or 
 
(v) Does not necessitate Board action, shall be place upon any Board agenda. 
 

(d) Availability to the Public 
 

(1) Correspondence addressed to individual Boardmembers shall not be opened by the 
Secretary unless authorized to do so by individual Boardmembers.  Such 
communications shall not become public records until received and filed by the Board at 
a regular, special or adjourned meeting of the Board, or retained or used as provided in 
§6250 of the California Government Code. 

 
(2) Correspondence received in the Secretary's or other Board offices after twelve o'clock 

noon on Mondays prior to the Board Meeting shall not be placed on the agenda unless it 
concerns a matter to be considered by the Board at the next regular meeting or is 
determined by the Secretary to be an urgent matter which should be brought to the 
immediate attention of the Board. 

 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 4



(3) Correspondence shall not be read aloud at a Board Meeting unless requested by a 
majority vote of the Board.  No item which is exempted by §6254 of the California 
Government Code shall be disclosed or treated as a public record. 

 
 
1005. Order of Business 
 
(a) STANDARD ORDER.  The Board will ordinarily consider and dispose of its business in the 

following order: 
 

(1) Call to Order.  The Chair will call the meeting to order, and the Board Secretary will call 
the roll.  

 
(2) Closed Session.  The Board will recess to closed session to consider items on the 

closed-session agenda.  Closed session will ordinarily be held between 6:00 p.m. and 
7:00 p.m. 

 
(3) Reconvene to Open Session.   The Chair will call the open session to order and invite the 

Board and public to salute the flag. 
 
(4) Report of Closed Session.  The General Counsel, or other person called upon by the 

Chair to do so, will provide a report of the Board’s closed session. 
 

(5) Approval of Minutes.  The Board will review the previous meeting’s minutes.  If the 
minutes are accurate, the Board will approve them.   If the minutes are inaccurate, the 
Board will correct any inaccuracies and approve the minutes as corrected. 

 
(6) Special Agenda Items.   The Chair, any member of the Board, or the Board Administrator, 

will make relevant announcements, present commendations or awards, introduce special 
guests, or conduct other brief business of a like nature. 

 
(7) Public Comment.  Members of the public will be given the opportunity to directly address 

the Board on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s subject-matter 
jurisdiction; however, members of the public wishing to address the Board on specific 
agenda items should address the Board on those items when they are under 
consideration by the Board.  In order to address the Board, any member of the public 
should inform the Board secretary of his or her name and the issue to be discussed, 
using a slip provided for the purpose.  The speaker must be given three minutes to 
speak, unless the Board permits a longer or shorter period, or another period is required 
by regulation.   

 
(8) Continued Business.   The Board will consider any unconcluded items from previous 

Board Meeting agendas. 
 
(9)  Consent Calendar. The Board will consider all consent items as a group by a single 

motion to approve the consent calendar.  Because the consent calendar includes only 
items of a noncontroversial nature that do not require a public hearing, such as receiving 
reports or making technical, non-substantive changes to regulations, the title to the 
individual consent items will not be read unless a request to do so is made by a member 
of the Board.  Public discussion is permitted only if the item is removed from the consent 
agenda and a specific request to be heard is made.   

 
(10) Jurisdictional Items. The Board will consider matters in which the Board is required to 

make a decision concerning an individual application or appeal.   
 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 4



(11) Public Hearings.  As specifically required by law, or as previously agreed by the Board, 
the Board will hold a public hearing on the adoption or substantive amendment of any 
regulation or rule, or the adoption of a resolution necessary to implement any regulation 
or rule.   

 
(12) Administrative Items.  The Board will consider issues placed on the agenda by the 

Administrator.  Examples of administrative items include the adoption or amendment of 
regulations, rules, or resolutions not specifically required by law or not previously 
suggested for discussion by the Board itself, the presentation of proposed budgets, and 
matters of a like nature.   

 
(13) Reports of Committees.  A subcommittee of the Board will present a report of its findings 

and recommendations, if any, to the entire Board and to the public. 
 
(14) Board Discussion Items.  A member of the Board, having caused an issue to be placed 

on the Board’s agenda, will succinctly state the issue for the Board’s consideration.   No 
final Board action may be taken on anything arising under this part of the agenda.  The 
Secretary must list items in this part of the agenda in the order in which they were 
received. 

 
(15) Written Communications.  The Board will receive written communication from the public. 

The Board Secretary must list all written communications on the agenda in the order in 
which they were received at the Board’s offices, together with a succinct statement of 
their subject matter.  The Board will not discuss the written communication except at the 
request of a Board member.  The discussion may be limited in duration by a majority vote 
of the Board. 

 
(16) Adjournment.  The Board will adjourn, and will remain adjourned until its next regularly-

scheduled meeting unless an emergency or special meeting is called before the next 
regularly-scheduled meeting. 

 
(b)    The Board may alter the order of its agenda for an individual meeting, except the call to order and 

adjournment, by majority vote. 
 

[1005 Amended 8/13/92; Effective 8/20/92] 
[1005 Amended 4/14/94; Effective 4/23/94] 
[1005 Amended 6/12/97; Effective 6/20/97] 
[1005 Amended 10/13/11; Effective 10/21/11] 
[1005 Amended 3/13/14; Effective 3/19/14] 
 
 
1006. Preparation of Minutes 
 
The Secretary shall have exclusive responsibility for preparation of the minutes, and any directions for 
changes in the minutes shall be made only by a majority action of the Board. 
 
 
1007. Reading of Minutes 
 
Unless the reading of the minutes of a Board Meeting is ordered by a majority vote of the Board, such 
minutes may be approved without reading if the Secretary has previously furnished each Boardmember 
with a copy. 
 
 
1008. Presiding Officer 
 
The Chairperson shall be the Presiding Officer at all meetings of the Rent Control Board.  In the absence 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 4



of the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall preside.  In the absence of both the Chairperson and the 
Vice-Chairperson, the Secretary shall call the Board to order whereupon a temporary Presiding Officer 
shall be elected by the Boardmembers present to serve until the arrival of the Chairperson or Vice-
Chairperson or until adjournment. 
 
 
1009. Powers and Duties of Presiding Officer 
 
(a) Participation 
 
 The Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson or such other member presiding may move, second and 

debate from the chair, subject only to such limitations of debate as are imposed upon members of 
the Board by these rules and shall not be deprived of any of the rights or privileges of a 
Boardmember by reason of his/her acting as Presiding Officer. 

 
(b) Duties 
 
 The Presiding Officer shall preserve order at all regular, adjourned regular, and special meetings 

of the Board.  Such officer shall state each question coming before the Board, announce the 
decisions of the Board on all subjects, rule on all evidentiary matters and decide all questions of 
order; subject, however, to an appeal by the Board, whereupon a majority vote of the Board on 
any question of order shall govern and determine conclusively such evidentiary ruling or question 
of order. 

 
(c) Signing of Documents 
 
 The Presiding Officer shall sign all Resolutions and other documents necessitating his/her 

signature which were adopted in his/her presence, unless he/she is unavailable, in which case 
the signature of the alternate Presiding Officer may be used.  The Administrator shall execute all 
contracts on behalf of the Board unless otherwise ordered by the Board.  Prior to Board 
authorization each contract shall be reviewed by the Board's counsel as to the form and legality. 

 
 
1010. Sworn Testimony 
 
(a) The Presiding Officer may require any person addressing the Board to be sworn as a witness and 

to testify under oath, and the Presiding Officer shall so require if directed to do so by a majority 
vote of the Board.  Any member of the Board may request that anyone appearing before the 
Board on any matter shall be sworn.  On receipt of such a request, all proceedings shall be 
suspended and the Board will, without debate, immediately vote on whether the individual should 
be sworn.  A majority vote of the members present shall determine whether the speaker shall be 
placed under oath.  All oaths and affirmations will be administered by the Secretary. 

 
(b) The Board shall have the power and authority to compel the attendance of witnesses, to examine 

them under oath, and to compel the production of evidence before it.  Subpoenas may be issued 
in the name of the Board and be attested by the Secretary. 

 
 
1011. Rules of Debate 
 
(a) Getting the Floor 
 
 Every Boardmember desiring to speak shall first address the Chair, gain recognition by the 

Presiding Officer, and shall confine himself/herself to the question under debate, avoiding 
personalities and indecorous language. 

 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 4



(b) Questions to Staff 
 
 Every Boardmember desiring to question Board staff shall, after recognition by the Presiding 

Officer, address his/her questions to the Administrator, the Board's counsel, or any staff member 
then present on the dais.  If either the Administrator or the Board's counsel feels another staff 
member who is not located on the dais could best respond to the Boardmember's question, he or 
she may direct the question to a member of his/her staff in the audience for that purpose. 

 
(c) Interruptions 
 

(1) A Boardmember, once recognized, shall not be interrupted when speaking unless: 
 

(i) called to order by the Presiding Officer; 
 
(ii) a point of order or a personal privilege is raised by another Boardmember; or 
 
(iii) the speaker chooses to yield to a question by another Boardmember. 
 

(2) If a Boardmember, while speaking, is called to order, he/she will cease speaking until the 
question of order is determined and, if determined to be in order, he/she may proceed. 

 
(3) Members of the staff after recognition by the Presiding Officer shall hold the floor until 

completion of their remarks or until recognition is withdrawn by the Presiding Officer. 
 

(d) Points of Order 
 
 The Presiding Officer shall determine all points of order subject to the right of any Boardmember 

to appeal to the Board.  If an appeal is taken, the question shall be, "Shall the decision of the 
Presiding Officer be sustained?"  A majority vote shall conclusively determine such question of 
order. 

 
(e) Point of Personal Privilege 
 
 The right of a Boardmember to address the Board on a question of personal privilege shall be 

limited to cases in which his/her integrity, character or motives are questioned or where the 
welfare of the Board is concerned.  A Boardmember raising a point of personal privilege may 
interrupt another Boardmember who has the floor only if the Presiding Officer recognizes the 
privilege. 

 
(f) Privilege of Closing Debate 
 
 The Boardmember moving the introduction or adoption of a Resolution or Motion, shall have the 

privilege of closing the debate, after other members of the Board have been given the opportunity 
to speak. 

 
(g) Motion to Reconsider 
 
 A motion to reconsider any action taken by the Board may be made only by a Boardmember of 

the prevailing side and may be made only on the same day the action is taken and shall have 
precedence over all other motions or while a member has the floor and said motion shall be 
debatable. 

 
(h) Calling for the Question 
 
 Neither the moving party nor the party seconding any motion is allowed to call for the question. 
 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 4



(i) Limitation of Debate 
 
 No Boardmember shall be allowed to speak more than once upon any particular subject until 

every other Boardmember desiring to do so shall have spoken.  Each Boardmember speaking on 
any item on the agenda shall be limited to ten (10) minutes per item to state his/her opinion and 
his/her views. 

 
 
1012. Remarks of Boardmembers and Synopsis of Debate 
 
A Boardmember may request through the Presiding Officer for the privilege of having an abstract of 
his/her statement on any subject under consideration by the Board entered in the minutes.  If the Board 
consents thereto, such statement shall be entered in the minutes. 
 
 
1013. Protest Against Board Action 
 
Any Boardmember shall have the right to have the reasons for his/her dissent from, or his/her protest 
against any action of the Board entered in the minutes.  Such dissent or protest to be entered in the 
minutes shall be made in the following manner: "I would like the minutes to show that I am opposed to 
this action for the following reasons . . ." 
 
 
1014. Rules of Order 
 
(a) Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, the City Charter, other rules adopted by the Board, 

or applicable provisions of State law, the procedures of this Board shall be governed by the latest 
revised edition of Robert's Rules of Order. 

 
(b) These Board rules, or any one thereof, may be suspended by a vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the 

Boardmembers. 
 
 
1015. Failure to Observe Rules of Order 
 
Rules adopted to expedite the transaction of the business of the Board in an orderly fashion are deemed 
to be procedural only and the failure to strictly observe such rules shall not affect the jurisdiction of the 
Board or invalidate any action taken at a meeting that is otherwise held in conformity with law. 
 
 
1016. Addressing the Board 
 
(a) Public Comment 
 
 Pursuant to the Brown Act, public comment is permitted on all agenda items and the public shall 

have an opportunity to comment on any matter which is not on the agenda but is within the Rent 
Control Board’s jurisdiction.  However, members of the public do not have the right to give 
comments outside the scope or unrelated to the agenda item under consideration.  Additionally, 
members of the public should strive to avoid unduly reiterating their own or others’ comments. 

 
(b) Registration 
 
 Each person wishing to address the Board regarding items on the agenda where public 

discussion is permitted shall register his/her request to speak with the Secretary preferably prior 
to the start of the Board meeting, and to any discussion of that item.  Each member of the public 
is encouraged, but not required, to provide his/her name and address.  Except for public 
hearings, registration to speak is permitted after discussion of a particular agenda item has 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 4



commenced.  All persons wishing to speak at public hearings must register prior to the opening of 
the public hearing. 

 
(c) Manner of Addressing the Board 
 

(1) Each person desiring to address the Board shall: 
 

(i) step up to the microphone in front of the rail; 
 
(ii) preferably state his/her name and home address for the record; 
 
(iii) state the subject he/she wishes to discuss; 
 
(iv) state whom he/she is representing if he/she represents an organization or other 

persons; and 
 
(v) For public hearings, and jurisdictional items and proceedings, if the speaker is the 

applicant or appellant, unless further time is granted by majority vote of the Board, 
shall limit his/her remarks to five (5) minutes, for all other items, unless further time 
is granted by a majority vote of the Board, shall limit his/her remarks to three (3) 
minutes per item, except as limited by section 1016 (d). 

 
(2) All remarks shall be addressed to the Board as a whole and not to any member thereof. 
 
(3) No questions shall be asked of a Boardmember or a member of the Board staff without 

permission of the Presiding Officer. 
 

(d) Discretion to Limit Duration and Number of Speakers 
 

(1) Where more than one person desires to speak on a particular item, it shall be within the 
discretion of the Presiding Officer to limit the number and duration of presentations to not 
less than ten (10) minutes for each side giving equal time for each position or side. 

 
(2) It is recommended that a spokesperson for each side be chosen prior to the meeting and 

the Secretary shall advise persons of this recommendation.  If a spokesperson has not 
been selected prior to the meeting, the item may be called and the Presiding Officer may 
either pass the item or grant a recess to permit the selection of a spokesperson. 

 
(3) The Presiding Officer may also determine which persons have a predominant or 

proprietary interest in an item and permit such persons to speak first.  If the Presiding 
Officer determines that more than one person desiring to speak has a predominant or 
proprietary interest, the person having the burden of proof on the matter should be called 
to speak first. 

 
(4) Nothing in this section shall be deemed to preclude the Presiding Officer or a majority of 

the Boardmembers present from allowing debate on any matter. 
 

(e) Persons Speaking on More Than One Item 
 
 Any person wishing to speak on more than one item shall limit his/her remarks to three (3) 

minutes (five (5) minutes on public hearings) on the item he/she considers most important, two 
(2) minutes on the item he or she considers next most important, and one (1) minute on any other 
item unless a greater or lesser time is set by a majority vote of the Board.  This subsection does 
not apply with respect to an applicant or appellant speaking on a Jurisdictional Proceeding item.  

 
 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 4



(f) After Motion 
 
 After a motion has been made or a public hearing has been closed, no member of the public shall 
address the Board from the audience on the matter under consideration without first securing permission 
to do so by a majority vote of the Board. 
 
[1016 Amended 6/12/97; Effective 6/20/97] 
[1016 Amended 10/13/11; Effective 10/21/11] 
 
 
1017. Rules of Decorum 
 
(a) Boardmembers 
 

(1) When the Board is in session, the members must preserve order and decorum, and a 
member shall neither by conversation nor otherwise delay or interrupt the proceedings or 
the peace of the Board nor disturb any member while speaking nor refuse to obey the 
orders of the Presiding Officer. 

 
(2) Members of the Board shall not leave their seats during a meeting without first obtaining 

the permission of the Presiding Officer. 
 

(b) Employees 
 
 Members of the Board staff and employees shall observe the same rules of order and decorum 

as are applicable to the Board, with the exception that members of the Board staff who are not 
seated at the Board table may leave their seats during a meeting without first obtaining the 
permission of the Presiding Officer. 

 
(c) Persons Addressing the Board 
 

(1) No person other than a member of the Board and the person having the floor shall be 
permitted to enter into discussions either directly or through a member of the Board, 
without permission of the Presiding Officer. 

 
(2) No questions shall be asked of a Boardmember except through the Presiding Officer. 
 
(3) All remarks shall be addressed to the Board as a body and not to any one Boardmember. 
 
(4) Any person making impertinent, slanderous or profane remarks, speaks in a loud, 

abusive or threatening way, or who becomes boisterous while addressing the Board, or 
who engages in any other disorderly conduct which disrupts, disturbs or otherwise 
impedes the orderly conduct of a Board meeting, shall be called to order by the Presiding 
Officer and if such conduct continues, may, at the discretion of the Presiding Officer, be 
barred from further audience before the Board during that meeting. 

 
(d) Members of the Audience  
 

(1) When the Board is in session, all persons present must preserve safety and order.  
Members of the public should sit in the audience sitting area, unless addressing the 
Board or leaving the chambers where the Board meeting is being held.  They should not 
block the aisles with personal belongings and should not bring audible equipment into the 
chambers including cellular telephones or pagers.  Members of the public may not, 
except when testifying on or participating in an agenda item, enter the well area, which is 
the open area directly in front of the dais and extending outward from it to a line running 
between the points on the Secretary’s desk and the podium nearest to the audience.   

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 4



 
(2) Any person who disrupts the meeting shall be called to order by the Presiding Officer.  

Disruptions shall include but not be limited to handclapping, stamping of feet, whistling, 
using profane language, yelling, interrupting individual Boardmembers or the Secretary 
when the Board is in session, and blocking the audience or camera view of the 
proceeding.  If such conduct continues, the Presiding Officer may request the Sergeant at 
Arms to remove the person from chambers.  
 

(3) Any persons carrying placards, signs, posters, packages, bundles, suitcases, or other 
large objects shall not allow them to obstruct any person’s view of the proceedings.  The 
Presiding Officer may request any person carrying such objects to remove them from the 
hearing room or place them on the floor during the meeting, and the person carrying such 
objects shall comply with the Presiding Officer’s request. 

 
(4) No literature of whatever nature or kind shall be distributed during the meeting unless the 

person seeking to do so has notified the Secretary of his or her intent prior to the 
meeting.  Literature may only be distributed during the first ten minutes after the meeting 
has been called to order. 

 
(e) Persons Authorized to be Within Rail 
 
 No person except members of the Board, staff and recognized representatives of the news media 

shall be permitted within the rail without the consent of the Presiding Officer. 
 
(f) Enforcement of Decorum 
 
 The Chief of Police or such member or members of the Police Department as he/she may 

designate, shall be Sergeant at Arms of the Board and shall carry out all orders given by the 
Presiding Officer (through the Secretary) for the purpose of maintaining order and decorum at the 
Board meetings.  Any Boardmember may move to require the Presiding Officer to enforce the 
rules, and the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board shall require him/her to do so. 

 
[1017 Amended 6/12/97; Effective 6/20/97] 
[1017(d)(1)-(4) Amended 10/13/11; Effective 10/21/11]  
 
 
1018. Voting Procedure 
 
Any vote of the Board, including a roll call vote, may be registered by the members by answering "AYE" 
for an affirmative vote or "NO" for a negative vote upon his/her name being called by the Secretary.  
Unless a member of the Board states that he/she is not voting, silence shall be recorded as an affirmative 
vote. 
 
 
1019. Disqualification for Conflict of Interest 
 
(a) Any Boardmember who is disqualified from voting on a particular matter by reason of a conflict of 

interest shall publicly state or have the Presiding Officer state the nature of such disqualification 
in an open meeting. 

 
(b) Where no thoroughly disqualifying conflict of interest appears, the matter of disqualification may, 

at the request of the Boardmember affected, be decided by other Boardmembers. 
 
(c) A Boardmember who is disqualified by reason of conflict of interest in any matter shall not remain 

in his/her seat during the debate and vote on such matter, but shall request and be given the 
permission of the Presiding Officer to step down from the table and leave the Board Chamber. 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 4



 
(d) A Boardmember stating such disqualification shall not be counted as part of a quorum and shall 

be considered absent for the purpose of determining the outcome of any vote on such matter. 
 
 
1020. Failure to Vote 
 
Every Boardmember is entitled to vote unless disqualified by reason of conflict of interest. 
 
 
1021. Tie Vote 
 
Tie votes shall be lost motions and may be reconsidered. 
 
 
1022. Changing Vote 
 
A member may change his/her vote only if he/she makes a timely request to do so immediately following 
the announcement of the vote by the Secretary and prior to the time that the next item in the order of 
business is taken up. 
 
 
1023. Motion Procedures 
 
(a) The Secretary or Presiding Officer will read the title. 

 
(b) A report will be presented by staff, if called for by the Presiding Officer. 

 
(c) Board members may ask questions of staff. 

 
(d) The public—or in the case of a jurisdictional item, the affected parties—will address the Board, 

subject to any limitations set forth in the Charter or Board regulations, or time limits imposed by 
the Board after a vote. 
 

(e) After all members of the public wishing to address the Board have done so, the Presiding Officer 
will announce the close of discussion by the public. 
 

(f) The Board may publicly deliberate. 
 

(g) A Commissioner may make a motion, or the Presiding Officer may ask for a motion.  If the motion 
is seconded, the motion is before the Board. 
 

(h) The Board will discuss the motion that is before it. 
 

(i) The maker of the motion will have a chance for further discussion. 
 

(j) The Presiding Officer will restate the motion. 
 

(k) The Board will vote on the motion.  If more than one motion is before the Board, the Board must 
vote on the last-made motion first, then proceed in reverse order to the first-made motion. 

 
[1023 Amended 3/13/14; Effective 3/19/14] 
 
 
1024. Regulations and Resolutions 
 
(a) The Presiding Officer, before calling for a motion on the adoption of any regulation or resolution, 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 4



shall first inquire if there is anyone who desires to be heard on said proposed regulation or 
resolution.  All persons desiring to be heard must have registered with the Secretary, prior to the 
discussion of the regulation item they wish to speak on and the Presiding Officer will call upon 
speakers from that list. 

 
(b) At the time adoption of a regulation or resolution, it shall be read in full unless, after the reading of 

the title thereof, the further reading thereof is waived by a unanimous vote of the Boardmembers 
present.  Such consent may be expressed by a statement by the Presiding Officer that "If there is 
no objection, the further reading of the regulation or resolution shall be waived." 

 
 
1025. Prior Approval by Administrative Staff 
 
All regulations and resolutions and contract documents shall, before presentation to the Board, have been 
approved as to form and legality by the Board's counsel, and shall have been examined for administration 
by the Administrator or his or her authorized representative. 
 
 
1026. Informal Meetings 
 
The Board, subject to notice and other requirements imposed by law, may hold informal meetings in the 
Council Chambers of the City Hall at such times as may be designated in order for a special meeting.  At 
any such informal meeting, the Board shall not take any formal motion, resolution, ordinance, nor any 
other action required by law to be taken by the Board.  Such informal sessions shall be devoted 
exclusively to the presentation and exchange of information. 
 
 
1027. Adjournment 
 
All Board Meetings shall adjourn at eleven o'clock p.m., unless two-thirds (2/3) of the Boardmembers vote 
otherwise. 
 
 
1028. Record of Meetings 
 
All public meetings of the Board shall be electronically recorded.  The recording shall be made by the 
Secretary and shall be part of the records of the Board.  The use of other recording or television 
equipment is permitted so long as it is not disruptive of the meeting. 
 
[1028 Amended 10/13/11; Effective 10/21/11] 
 
 
1029. Interpretation and Modification of the Rules 
 
These rules shall be interpreted liberally in order to provide for the optimum in the free interchange of 
information and public debate without any unnecessary waste of time or duplication of effort. 
 
__________ 
 
 
[Chapter 1 Adopted 1/10/85; Effective 2/5/85] 
[1002 Amended 5/29/86; Effective 5/29/86] 
[1005 Amended 8/13/92; Effective 8/20/92] 
[1005 Amended 4/14/94; Effective 4/23/94] 
[1003 Amended 6/12/97; Effective 6/20/97]  
[1005 Amended 6/12/97; Effective 6/20/97] 
[1016 Amended 6/12/97; Effective 6/20/97] 
[1017 Amended 6/12/97; Effective 6/20/97] 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 4



[1002(a) Amended 1/27/00; Effective 2/11/00] 
[1002(a)-(b) Amended 10/13/11; Effective 10/21/11] 
[1003(a) Amended 10/13/11; Effective 10/21/11] 
[1005 Amended 10/13/11; Effective 10/21/11] 
[1016 Amended 10/13/11; Effective 10/21/11] 
[1017(d)(1)-(4) Amended 10/13/11; Effective 10/21/11]  
[1028 Amended 10/13/11; Effective 10/21/11] 
[1005 Amended 3/13/14; Effective 3/19/14] 
[1023 Amended 3/13/14; Effective 3/19/14] 
[1002(a) Amended 11/8/18; Effective 11/15/18] 
[1003(d) Adopted 11/8/18; Effective 11/15/18] 

ITEM J-2 
ATTACHMENT 4


	Agenda 7-17-19 FINAL
	COMPILED ITEM H-1
	Agenda Request Form_Item H-1
	Department: Rent Program

	Minutes 6-19-2019 - Final

	COMPILED ITEM H-2
	Agenda Request Form_Item H-2
	Department: Rent Program

	Report - June 2019

	COMPILED ITEM H-3
	Agenda Request Form_Item H-3
	Department: Rent Program

	Rent Program Variance Report June 2019

	COMPILED ITEM I-1
	Agenda Request Form_Item I-1
	Department: Rent Program

	Brown Act Agenda Report
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2

	COMPILED ITEM J-1
	Agenda Request Form_Item J-1
	Department: Rent Program

	Regulation 842 agenda report
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2
	Attachment 3
	Attachment 4

	COMPILED ITEM J-2
	Agenda Request Form_Item J-2
	Department: Rent Program

	Agenda Report
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2
	Attachment 3
	Attachment 4




